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WINNING THE AWAY GAME

As I write this, England’s football team is gearing up for
its World Cup match against Uruguay and the pundits
are busy speculating about Liverpool FC team mates
Daniel Sturridge and Luis Suárez finding themselves
on opposing sides. Pictures of England players being
mobbed as they venture out of the hotel in Brazil (see
page 6) reveal the massive international popularity of
the Barclays Premier League, while the World Cup itself
is a TV phenomenon, with the 2014 tournament expected to comfortably exceed
the 3.2 billion audience attracted by South Africa 2010.
The World Cup is a striking example of globalisation. Suárez left Uruguay in
2006 to play for Dutch team Groningen before moving to Ajax and then Liverpool.
Every World Cup match offers examples of players who have moved abroad and
allows advertisers to get their brands in front of a truly global audience.
The accountancy profession has embraced globalisation and been a driver of
it, with international accounting and auditing standards, and global initiatives
such as integrated reporting. But the road to globalisation is not always smooth.
Efforts to bring international and US accounting standards together, for example,
have been less successful. Our interview this month with US Financial Accounting
Foundation president Teresa Polley (page 74) provides some insight into the
challenges, which include the litigious nature of US investors.
Tax is another difficult area. We report this month on a single global standard
for automatic information exchange between tax authorities worldwide (page 18).
Anyone wanting to develop an international strategy might want to visit our
CPD article on page 46.
Meanwhile, die-hard sports fans have another global event to look forward to
– the Commonwealth Games in Glasgow. We set the scene with our lead interview
(page 14) with the accountant in charge of making sure it all happens on time.
Chris Quick, editor, chris.quick@accaglobal.com
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NEWS | PICTURES

▲ SNAP HAPPY

The England football team were welcomed
to Brazil ahead of their first World Cup game.
England’s Premier League – which saw
combined club revenues of £2.9bn in 2012/13
– has a large following in the country

▼ ALL CHANGE

A shakeup of seats following the
European Parliament election
in May produced what London
mayor Boris Johnson described
as a ‘peasants’ revolt’

▲ SKY’S THE LIMIT

London’s 306-metre-tall Shard, designed
by Renzo Piano, has been named the best
skyscraper on the planet
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▲ BRAKES ARE ON

Taxi drivers in Madrid, Spain and London,
UK protested about the growing use of
controversial metering app Uber

▲ LIFE IS TWEET

The United Nations is considering alternative
measures of GDP – including birdsong, girls’
school attendance and a good night’s sleep

ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS
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News round-up
This month’s stories include an FRC better reporting programme, substandard bank and
building society audits, and HMRC’s £24bn haul from its collection crackdown
FRC SUPPORTS IR

The Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) has announced
a programme to promote
clear and concise reporting
to increase investor
confidence, based on the
use of integrated reporting.
Guidance issued by the
FRC will seek to ensure
reports are fair, balanced
and understandable: reports
that follow the guidance will
conform to the International
Integrated Reporting
Framework. Paul Druckman,
CEO of the International
Integrated Reporting Council,
responded: ‘We share the
FRC’s vision to improve
the quality of corporate
reporting and welcome the
greater alignment between
the strategic report and IR.’

SUBSTANDARD AUDITS

Audits of banks and building
societies are below the
standard of those in other
sectors, the FRC has stated
in its annual report on audit
quality. It will now conduct
a thematic inspection of
auditing of banks and
building societies. Firms will
be told to undertake more
work on their audits when
significant shortcomings
are found. Some 60%
of audits were of good
quality, or required limited
improvement, as were 86%
of FTSE 100 companies. But
the FRC stated that it had
found breaches of the rules
on auditor independence
and in the auditing of
letterbox companies.

WHISTLEBLOWER LAW

LLP partners are now
considered as workers for
the purpose of whistleblower

ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS

protection as a result of a
Supreme Court judgment.
In the case Clyde & Co LLP
and another v Bates van
Winkelhof, the court held
that members of LLPs are
‘workers’ and so covered
by employment legislation.
The case centred a claim
by solicitor Bates van
Winkelhof that she was
dismissed by Clyde & Co
as a result of allegations
that she made against the
managing partner of the
firm’s practice in Tanzania.

HMRC NETS £24BN

HM Revenue & Customs
(HMRC) has raised an
additional £23.9bn in the
last year through tougher
collection measures, the
government has announced.
London firm Blick
Rothenberg said HMRC’s
success was the result of
what it called its ‘seven
deadly weapons’ – including
disclosure of tax avoidance
schemes, the general antiabuse rule, naming and
shaming of tax defaulters,
international exchange of
information agreements and
the good fortune of contacts
from informers. Tough
new measures are being
introduced: prepayment to
HMRC of disputed tax and
the empowering of HMRC
to directly access taxpayers’
accounts to claim tax.

NT ADVISORS DEFEATED
HMRC has won its fifth
success against avoidance
schemes designed by
NT Advisors. The firm’s
Bluebox scheme arranged
a £500,000 ‘gift’ to a
charity, with the money
then transferred to a trust

TRENDS
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INTERNATIONAL CAREERS TAKE OFF

The numbers willing to work abroad have more than
doubled over the last five years, with the US, the UK
and Australia the top three destinations, according to
Global Professionals on the Move 2014, produced by
Hydrogen Group and MEB students at ESCP Europe.

in Jersey held in the client’s
name. The scheme was
rejected by a tribunal, with
the result that NT Advisors’
clients will pay an additional
£21m in tax.

JULIAN KELLY APPOINTED
Julian Kelly has been
appointed as the Treasury’s
director general of public
spending and finance.
The position was created
following the government’s
Financial Management
Review. Kelly is the first
person to be both head of

the government finance
position and also in charge
of overall public spending.
Kelly is currently director
of public spending at the
Treasury and led its work on
the 2013 Spending Round.
He was previously finance
director in the Treasury and
at the UK Border Agency.
He has also worked for
the private sector – on
secondment at HSBC.

TAX RATE ATTACKED

More than half a million UK
taxpayers are paying

»
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TRENDS
BIG FOUR SQUEEZE MID-TIER FIRMS ON AUDIT MARKET SHARE

The Big Four firms have increased audit market share at the expense of the mid-tier
firms, according to the Financial Reporting Council’s annual Key Facts and Trends
in the Accountancy Profession. Audit fee income for Big Four firms rose by 2.8% in
2012–13 but fell by 1.7% for the next tier of firms. Total fee income for all firms
surveyed rose last year – by 3.9% for the Big Four and 2.6% for mid-tier firms. Total
membership of accountancy bodies in the UK rose by 2.7% in the UK, to 327,000,
and by 3.5% globally, to 469,000. The report is at http://tinyurl.com/frc-kft

PERCENTAGE OF THE NUMBER OF LISTED
COMPANY AUDITS UNDERTAKEN BY THE BIG FOUR
98%

FTSE 100

96%

FTSE 250

68.1%

Other UK main market

78.8%

All main market

LONDON OVERTAKES NY IN POLL
London is the world’s top city for business, finance
and culture, according to Cities of Opportunity, PwC’s
annual index of 30 major global cities. New York was
rated the leading city in last year’s index, with London
just behind. London now has a significant lead over its
competitors in the index. The city was rated the best
in the world for economic clout and as an international
travel and tourism gateway. It was described by PwC as
‘technologically on the top of its game’ for development,
design and internet access. London was meanwhile
rated as Europe’s business capital in a Deloitte survey.

tax at a marginal rate of
60%, according to analysis
conducted by the Institute
for Fiscal Studies (IFS).
Changes to the tax system
introduced by the last
government mean that
many professionals earning
between £100,000 and
£120,000 pay 60 pence in
tax for every extra pound
they earn. ‘It’s hard to make
much sense of that,’ said
Paul Johnson, director of
the IFS.
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TRUE AND FAIR

The FRC has issued an
updated statement on the
application of International
Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and
UK generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP)
true and fair requirements.
This follows the confirmation
by the FRC and the
Department for Business,
Innovation & Skills at the
end of last year that the
legal framework continues

to require a true and fair
view in financial reports.
The new statement reflects
developments in UK GAAP,
the now finalised European
audit legislation, legal advice
obtained by the FRC and
stakeholder feedback.

COMPUTER 2000

The FRC is conducting
an investigation into
the financial reports of
Computer 2000 for the
years 2009 to 2013. The

investigation follows an
announcement by Computer
2000’s parent company,
Tech Data Corporation, of
the conclusion of its own
internal investigation into
its accounting practices
across Europe. This led
to Tech Data restating
its consolidated financial
statement for this period.

LAW FIRMS EXCUSED

The Solicitors Regulation
Authority (SRA) has
published a proposal to
abolish the need for law
firms holding client money
to obtain annual reports
from accountants. The
move could save law firms
£30m a year, calculates the
SRA. Law firm compliance
officers would instead
sign an annual declaration
that client accounts are
managed in accordance with
SRA requirements. Peter
Noyce, head of professional
services at Menzies, said the
move had been expected.
‘Law firms are under huge
financial pressure, and many
operate on a weak financial
basis,’ he explained.

PwC WINS BUNZL AUDIT

PwC has won the audit for
Bunzl, which was previously
conducted by KPMG. This
followed a tender process
and was in response to
KPMG having held the
contract for 28 years. But
analysis by Adviser Rankings
shows that KPMG has the
most FTSE AIM 100 audits,
while BDO has the highest
number of AIM audits
overall.

BAKER TILLY COMPLAINT
An independent disciplinary
tribunal is to consider a
formal complaint by the
FRC’s Executive Counsel
regarding the conduct of
Baker Tilly and its partners
Richard King and Steven
Railton. The complaint
alleges that the conduct of

ROUND-UP | NEWS

Baker Tilly, King and Railton
‘fell significantly short of
the standards reasonably
to be expected of members
and member firms’. The
charges relate to audits of
the Tanfield Group plc for
2007 and 2008. A Baker
Tillly spokesman said:
‘As the matter is subject
to the formal regulatory
processes of the FRC, it is
inappropriate to comment
at the present time.’

BERKELEY PROBE ENDS
The FRC has closed its
investigation into PwC’s
audits of housebuilder
Berkeley Group Holdings
for the year ending April
2012. No further action will
be taken. The investigation
began in September last
year and was a result of the
appointment of a former
PwC partner to the board
of Berkeley.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The International
Accounting Standards
Board and the US Financial
Accounting Standards Board
have agreed a converged
accounting standard
on revenue recognition.
The core principle of the
converged standard is
to recognise revenue for
goods or services at the
time a company expects
to be paid. There will also
be greater disclosure on
revenue. The two boards
have established a Joint
Transition Resource Group
to ease implementation
of the new standard. Phil
Dowad, KPMG’s global
IFRS revenue recognition
leader, said the converged
standard would affect many
businesses. ‘Companies
that sell products and
services in a bundle, or
those engaged in major
projects… could see
significant changes to
the timing of revenue
recognition,’ he said.

CHINA BAN CHALLENGED
The Big Four accountancy
firms have won a review
of the ban on their China
practices’ auditing of US
listed companies. The
Securities and Exchange
Commission is to
conduct the review of its
administrative law judge’s
ruling that invoked the sixmonth suspension. Action
was taken against the Big
Four for refusing to release
audit-related documents
of US listed, but China
located, companies to the
SEC, which the firms say
they are prevented from
doing by Chinese law.
Meanwhile, a court in Hong
Kong has ordered EY to
release audit documents
related to a former Chinese
client, Standard Water, to
Hong Kong’s Securities and
Futures Commission.

FEW REPORT IMPACT

Although companies are
making massive social
investments, few report
the impacts of those
investments, according to
KPMG’s Unlocking the value
of social investment report.
KPMG puts the total global
value of social investment
by the largest corporations
at US$12.2bn. KPMG found
that social investments in
such objectives as disaster
relief, healthcare and
education were worth 2.5%

of pre-tax profits. Yet just
20% of companies report
quantified metrics for the
impact of their investments.
The report is at http://
tinyurl.com/oo6kvw9

HIGH COST OF FRAUD

Around 5% of global
revenues are lost to fraud,
amounting to a total annual
loss of more than US$3.5
trillion, according to a
study by the Association of
Certified Fraud Examiners,
the 2014 Report to the
Nations on Occupational
Fraud and Abuse. More than
one in five instances of inhouse fraud cost corporates
more than US$1m. On
average, it takes 18 months
before a fraud is detected,
and smaller businesses
suffered higher losses.
Read the report at www.
acfe.com/rttn.aspx

KPMG NETHERLANDS

KPMG’s leader in the
Netherlands, Jurgen van
Breukelen, has resigned
after a criminal investigation
into alleged tax fraud was
initiated. The investigation
is focusing on allegations
related to financial
arrangements for the firm’s
new headquarters. Van
Breukelen is chairman of
the board of management.
He is not personally the
subject of the investigation
but said that he is leaving
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to enable KPMG to move
on from past mistakes. He
explained: ‘KPMG has to
make major changes. We
have made a solid start on
those changes, but we still
have a long way to go.’

ROLL-OVER RELIANCE

The business model of
payday lenders is reliant on
repeat lending to vulnerable
consumers, an ACCA
report, Payday lending:
fixing a broken market,
has concluded. Ewan
Willars, director of policy
at ACCA, commented:
‘When considering that in
2012 borrowers spent over
£900m on payday loans,
with £450m spent on loans
which were subsequently
“rolled over”, you begin to
understand the magnitude
of the market.’ The
report was launched at a
roundtable that considered
alternative systems for
providing short-term loans.
More at www.accaglobal.
com/ab92

KPMG MERGERS

KPMG has completed
two new major business
deals. Most of the partners
and staff of hedge fund
professional services firm
Rothstein Kass are to join
KPMG, to make KPMG
the largest audit, tax and
advisory practitioner in the
hedge fund sector. John

»

INDIA CHANGE URGED
India’s new government must concentrate on legal
reforms to make it easier to do business, says a report
by the Confederation of Indian Industry and KPMG.
Narendra Modi (pictured) was elected India’s prime
minister on a pro-business agenda, promising to
increase prosperity and accelerate economic growth.
The CII and KPMG report, Ease of doing business
in India, says priorities must be the ease of settingup firms, land acquisition, tax law and contract
enforcement. In the most recent World Bank Doing
Business report, India was ranked 134 of 189 countries
– the lowest rating for a BRIC.

ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS
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Veihmeyer, global chairman
of KPMG, said the deal
represented ‘a significant
investment in our audit and
tax businesses’ – though
the firm is not disclosing
terms. KPMG has also
acquired SAFIRA, one of
the largest global business
process management
providers. KPMG said the
transaction supported
its strategy to provide
comprehensive technologyenabled solutions to
business problems.

FUNDS SUPPORT FOR IR

An integrated reporting
pension fund network
has been formed with
the support of some of
the world’s largest funds,
including AustralianSuper
and CareSuper. The network
will increase engagement
across the sector with the
International Integrated
Reporting Council and
help promote support for
the concept of integrated
reporting. The network’s
first meeting was held in
Australia and heard from
the National Australia
Bank and the Australian
Council of Superannuation
Investors as supporters of
integrated reporting.

AUDITOR SUSPENDED

The US Securities and
Exchange Commission has
charged the former chief
risk officer at Deloitte LLP

GLENCORE OPTS OUT OF IFRS

▲ IN SPOTLIGHT

Glencore Xstrata CEO
Ivan Glasenberg (left)

with violations of auditor
independence rules. It
found that James T Adams
repeatedly accepted tens
of thousands of dollars
in casino credit while he
was the advisory partner
on subsidiary Deloitte &
Touche’s audit of a casino
gaming corporation.
Adams concealed this from
Deloitte and lied to another
partner about it. Adams
agreed to settle the SEC’s
charges and has been
suspended for at least two
years from practising as
an accountant. Deloitte did
not respond to a request for
comment.

FOREIGN AUDITOR BAN
Audit firms based in
countries imposing
economic sanctions on
Russia may be banned
from conducting audits
of state entities there,
according to reports in the

The recently merged Glencore Xstrata company was
criticised at its annual general meeting for using Swiss
accounting rules, leading to less transparency, critics
have said. A resolution tabled at the AGM allowed
Glencore Xstrata to remove the requirement on the
company to report in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards. Investment advisory firm
PIRC said: ‘As a result of this change, true dividend
cover of the company will not be transparent nor will
the rest of the balance sheet.’ Glencore Xstrata failed to
respond to a request for comment.

Russian media. A draft law
is apparently being drafted
by representatives of the
majority United Russia
party which would impose
the ban, ostensibly on the
grounds that auditors from
Western nations adopt an
approach biased against
public sector independence
and favouring inward
investment.

NEXT LOSES TAX CLAIM

Next Distribution – part of
the Next fashion group – has
lost a £19m tax allowance
claim. Next had claimed
the allowance under the
former industrial buildings
allowance. This allowed for
tax liabilities to be reduced
where construction costs
were incurred for sites built
for the storage and transfer
of imported goods. HMRC
successfully argued that
Next was not entitled to
claim under the allowance

IRISH TAX TREATMENT PROBED
Ireland’s favourable tax treatment of Apple is being
investigated by the European Commission. Apple told
a recent US Congressional hearing that some of its
subsidiaries were ‘stateless’ and therefore not liable
to corporate tax in any country. The Netherlands’ tax
treatment of Starbucks is also being investigated.
Commission vice president Joaquín Almunia said:
‘Under the EU’s state aid rules, national authorities
cannot take measures allowing certain companies to pay
less tax than they should if the tax rules of the member
state were applied in a fair and non-discriminatory way.’
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as its use of the site for
repackaging goods arriving
in the UK was outside
the purpose of the tax
allowance.

HERTZ RESULTS REVIEW
Hertz has announced that
it is reviewing its financial
reporting and may need to
restate the last three years’
financial results. Errors
were identified in trading
accounts in Brazil and its
treatment of capitalisation
and depreciation of
assets. Problems with its
accounting could lead to
a delay in its planned sale
of its equipment rental
business. Hertz expects
its auditor, PwC, to give it
an ‘adverse opinion’ on its
financial controls.

BAKER TILLY COO

David Gwilliam has been
appointed chief operating
officer at Baker Tilly in
the UK, heading the firm’s
international services
proposition within the RSM
International network.
Gwilliam has been a partner
with Baker Tilly for 17 years
and for the last four years
was the regional managing
partner for the London
region. He will remain a
member of the Executive
Board of Baker Tilly UK
Holdings Limited. ■
Compiled by Paul Gosling,
journalist
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THE INSIDE TRACK

On the eve of the Glasgow 2014 Commonwealth Games, David Leather, the accountant
charged with ensuring everything is ready on time, takes us behind the scenes

F

2013

Chief operating officer
(seconded), Glasgow 2014
Commonwealth Games.

CV

rom 23 July until 3 August, all eyes will be on
Glasgow as it hosts the 20th Commonwealth Games.
Responsibility for the £472m budget rests on the
shoulders of chief operating officer David Leather, a
key figure in the staging of two of Britain’s most successful
ever sports events, the Manchester 2002 Commonwealth
Games and the London 2012 Olympic Games.
Leather is on secondment from EY, the official
professional adviser to Glasgow 2014. He’s been a partner
at the firm since 2005 and brings considerable experience
to proceedings, first as deputy CEO and FD of the
Manchester 2002 Games, and then as adviser for London
2012. It’s his job to ensure the events, the venues, security,
transport and accommodation are all ready on time and
within the budget, and remain fully operational throughout
the Games.
While the scale of the 2014 Games is vastly different to
London 2012, Leather’s experiences from the 2002 Games
– which came in £14m under budget – have been extremely
useful. While Glasgow’s budget is well below the £8.92bn
it cost to stage London 2012, it is estimated that the 2014
Games will reach 1.5 billion people through TV and radio,
which compares well with London 2012’s reach of four billion.
‘It’s quite difficult to compare an Olympic Games with a
Commonwealth Games; they are on a different scale and the
Olympics has a huge budget relative to the Commonwealth
Games,’ Leather says. ‘The Olympic Park in London was a
very complex site and part of a massive legacy project, and
a huge amount of money was spent on the infrastructure
required to stage the Games.’
Instead, Leather suggests that a comparison with the
Manchester Games is more relevant. ‘The cities have similar
ambitions and recognise the importance of the Games
leaving a lasting legacy; the sports programme includes the
same 17 sports and a similar number of athletes, officials
and media will come to the Games.
‘The Manchester Games left a strong, sustainable legacy,
with facilities built with their future use in mind.’ For example,
the main athletics stadium was designed to have its running
track, field and a temporary stand removed after the Games
finished so a pitch could be laid and the venue converted into
a ground for Manchester City FC.
‘In Glasgow we have the opposite situation where we
have adapted the football stadium at Hampden and built a
platform for the athletics track.’

2006

Chief executive (seconded), Transport for
Greater Manchester, until January 2013.

2005

Became partner at EY (Manchester),
and seconded to set up the Olympic
Delivery Authority.

2003

FD, Manchester Airport.

1997

Seconded to become FD and later deputy
chief executive of Manchester 2002, the
organisation responsible for the delivery of
the 2002 Commonwealth Games.

1985

Trainee chartered accountant, KPMG.

The work to convert
One of the biggest challenges has been what Leather
describes as the ‘unprecedented transformation’ of
Hampden Park from Scotland’s national football stadium
into one fit to host a full programme of athletics. This has
involved the use of revolutionary technology to raise the
level of the competition area by 1.9 metres (and covering
eight rows of seats) and extend its width and length, as well
as to create enough space for a warm-up track and jump
areas nearby.
The process has utilised approximately 6,000 steel posts
and 1,200 panels to create a deck weighing over 1,000
tonnes, with a further 16,000 tonnes of stone, tar and
rubber placed on top.
‘The approach has International Association of Athletics
Federation (IAAF) approval and is already being termed
the “Glasgow solution” in worldwide athletics circles, a

»

ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS

16

FOCUS | INTERVIEW

*

17

‘My career path hasn’t run
exactly as I’d envisaged; that is
the beauty of it. Being open to
opportunities and flexible is a
great asset, but don’t lose sight of
your big career goals.’

£472m

Total budget.

1.5bn

Estimated audience reach through TV
and radio.

71

TIPS

BASICS

The 2014 Commonwealth Games will
feature 17 sports, which will be held across
14 venues.

*

Number of teams participating.

15,000

Number of volunteers.

potential game-changer for future international athletics
events across the globe,’ Leather says.
Meanwhile, the brand-new athletes’ village will provide
a legacy of 700 new homes, with Glasgow 2014 making a
direct financial contribution. By contrast, in Manchester the
village was based in existing university facilities.
The overall expenditure in Glasgow is higher than in
Manchester, due to its use of three major venues (the
football grounds at Ibrox, Celtic Park and Hampden) rather
than a single main stadium, the construction of the athletes’
village and a temporary shooting venue, and significantly
higher security costs.
Whatever the differences, both events have faced similar
pressures, says Leather. ‘It is challenging to build an
organisation quickly with good-quality, experienced people
when many roles are only for short-term contracts,’ he
explains. ‘The team in Glasgow is very cost-conscious and
the same was true in Manchester. In both cases money is
being spent wisely with a high level of assurance through
external advisers, the audit committee and the budget
oversight group.’

Income push
He adds: ‘In terms of revenue, a great job has been done
in raising ticketing, sponsorship and TV rights revenue. The
organising committee has done everything it can to bring in
revenue and minimise the exposure to the public purse.’
For Leather, the biggest financial challenges around the
2014 Games have included dealing with such unknowns
as ground conditions, along with the extensive number of
contractors involved in the build phase for the temporary
overlay and the tight timescale for physical installations,
which are concurrent across 14 venues. These require
power, seating, scaffolding, lighting, media facilities and
operational spaces as well as catering provision for the
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‘Develop a culture that is accepting
of change and encourage managers
to think differently and to be more
challenging of each other. Try to
become more performance-focused
and goal-oriented rather than
rewarding people because they
have been in their job for a certain
amount of time.’

*

‘Business relies much more on
the audit profession today. The
combination of International Financial
Reporting Standards, Sarbanes-Oxley
and the fact that audit committees have
far more responsibility means that
auditors are held in far higher esteem
than when I joined KPMG in 1985.’

30,000 contractors, 15,000 volunteers, a paid workforce of
around 1,700, athletes, media and representatives from the
Commonwealth Games Federation.
‘It’s a big logistical challenge but we have assembled a
strong, experienced team to deliver it,’ confirms Leather.
Then there is transport. ‘Rail and subway services
are being strengthened and we need a huge number of
buses for the athletes and media, and for the spectator
park-and-ride and shuttle services,’ he says. ‘We have to
move people around while the city continues to operate as
normally as possible.’
The fact that sporting events have a fixed end date helps
to maintain momentum, says Leather. ‘This helps to keep
everyone focused and ensures that we make decisions when
we need to keep the project moving.’
Leather pays tribute to finance director Ian Reid. ‘When
the organising committee was set up, a great deal of work
was carried out by Ian, and with the support of a number
of subject-matter experts, to construct the organising
committee budget,’ he says.
‘This included a sizeable provision for the unknown
expenditure requirements that would emerge over a six-year
period up to the Games. This budget has stood the test of
time and we are confident it will be sufficient to deliver a
great games; we have the right team in place to do it.’ ■
Alex Miller, journalist
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◄ REFLECTING GLORY

Scotland’s national netball team will
be competing at the Scottish Exhibition
and Conference Centre Precinct

HOOP HOPES
Scotland’s national netball team is making its final
preparations for the Glasgow 2014 Commonwealth
Games under the guidance of team manager and
ACCA member Karen McElveen.
‘It’s the first time Scotland has participated in the
Commonwealth Games in this sport, so this is huge for
us as a management group and equally huge for the girls
in the squad,’ explains McElveen (pictured), whose day
job is director of operations in the property and asset
management division of global property agent CBRE.
‘It’s been five years in the planning around the
sport itself through Netball Scotland and 18 months
of intensive work with Team Scotland and the other
Commonwealth sports, so we just can’t wait for it
to happen – everyone is buzzing.’
Currently ranked 12th in the world, the Scottish
squad is looking to compete with distinction and is
going for a top-eight finish.
‘We’re really confident, because in the last six months
or so our performance has gone to another level,’ says
McElveen, who herself has been capped 39 times for
Scotland and competed in two Netball World Cups – in
1995 and 1999. ‘We’ve beaten Wales and Trinidad and
Tobago, who are the eighth-ranked teams in the world,
and we’ve qualified for the 2015 Netball World Cup in
Sydney, which we didn’t manage to do in 2011.’

McElveen’s job as team manager involves ensuring
her athletes have everything they need to be able to
concentrate on their performance. This includes liaising
with Netball Scotland staff to ensure that any trials,
tours or competitions are organised and run smoothly.
‘A typical tour day might involve going to the gym or
for a run in the morning, sometimes before the athletes
are up. Then we’ll go and do some training with the
athletes, and it can be full-on from 6.30am right through
sometimes to 1 or 2am if there’s a late match.’
McElveen admits that it’s a challenge to fit it all in, but
she makes it work.
‘CBRE are really good in terms of supporting me,’ she
says. ‘They know what’s at stake and are happy as long
as I do my job.’
Based in Glasgow, McElveen manages a team of
80 people in CBRE’s real estate
accounting services department.
Its functions range from collecting
rent and paying invoices to financial
reporting. Properties managed
include such iconic buildings as The
Gherkin in London and high-street
retailers all around the country.
McElveen qualified with ACCA in
2008 and became an FCCA last year.
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GAME CHANGER

The global tax information exchange network has become tighter as the OECD puts the
final touches to the single standard, due to be considered by the G20 in September

A

single global standard for automatic information
exchange (AIE) between tax authorities worldwide
is in the final stages of preparation by the
Organisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development (OECD). G20 finance ministers will consider
it in September before sanctioning its implementation.
Described as ‘a real game-changer’ by OECD secretary
general Angel Gurria, the new AIE system proposed in a
February 2014 report, Standard for Automatic Exchange of
Financial Account Information: Common Reporting Standard,
has two main features: a Competent Authority Agreement
(CAA), a model agreement for jurisdictions implementing
the system among each other; and a Common Reporting
Standard (CRS) for information exchange.
Under these systems, financial and compliance officers
worldwide will play key roles in ensuring proper audits
of information divulged and received, and monitoring its
use. Political commitment is substantial. The G20 nations
themselves asked the OECD in April 2013 to work up the
technical details.

OECD proposals. They welcome their inclusion for the first
time in such information exchanges of ‘ownerless’ assets
often held in structures such as foundations or discretionary
trusts, through which top earners can mask tax evasion and
remain unaccountable.
The new standard also requires some trusts to report
on the settlor – that is, the creator, the beneficiary or any
other natural person exercising ultimate effective control
over the trust.

Developing countries
However, TJN’s detailed response, OECD’s Automatic
Information Exchange Standard: A watershed moment for
fighting offshore tax evasion?, listed claimed technical and
political shortcomings. ‘One of our biggest concerns is that
there is no commitment to helping developing countries
build capacity to comply with these new standards and to
adapt them into legislation so that they can actually benefit
from AIE,’ says TJN researcher Andres Knobel. ‘Also, we do
not know if any of the loopholes that we have mentioned will
be fixed or not.’
Warning that financial sector
lobbyists would try to water down
the language of the commentary,
TJN called for ‘robust language’ to
close potential loopholes, including
definitions of who is really behind
or benefits from structures such as
trusts and secret companies. It also protested the apparent
exclusion from reporting requirements for some trusts
managed by individuals, as well as discretionary foundations
or anstalts.
TJN is also concerned that the OECD proposes thresholds
below which automatic reporting or customer due diligence
(CDD) checks would not be required. On CDD checks, TJN
claims that the OECD report fails ‘to adequately address the
crucial issue of checks on taxpayer identification numbers
and birth dates’.
TJN warns that some tax evasion would move to
jurisdictions that refused to cooperate: ‘Proposals
for sanctions will be needed to pressure recalcitrant
jurisdictions, but with appropriate allowances made for
developing countries,’ it comments.
Accounting and Business put some of these points to
Pascal Saint-Amans, director of the OECD Centre for Tax

▌▌▌‘A BIG CONCERN IS THAT THERE IS NO
COMMITMENT TO HELPING DEVELOPING
COUNTRIES BUILD CAPACITY TO COMPLY’
A second block of ‘early adopter’ nations pledged in
February (Joint Statement by Early Adopters Group) to have AIE
effective by July 2017. They include nations in the vanguard
of calling for greater AIE, but also countries formerly
regarded as secretive, such as Liechtenstein, Luxembourg
and some UK crown dependencies.
A third block signed up in May (Declaration on Automatic
Exchange of Information in Tax Matters) including two nations
in particular that were new to this kind of commitment:
Switzerland and Singapore. Austria, hitherto a blocker
of AIE within the EU, was in this group, although these
participants have no timeline for implementation.
An OECD fiscal affairs committee meeting in June was
to receive a detailed commentary from a working party on
precise interpretations of how AIE will be implemented.
Despite this political consensus, independent analysts
at the Tax Justice Network (TJN) have mixed views on the
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Policy and Administration. ‘Unlike in the past, where to
reach agreement you might have had to find a compromise
that would weaken the standard, there is no such
compromise in designing the new standard,’ he stresses.
‘The standard has been developed by like-minded countries
that want to close down all loopholes.’
In effect, the AIE represents a ‘multilateralisation of
the US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act [FATCA]’,
Saint-Amans says. ‘FATCA is anything but complacent. It is
not designed, for example, to allow French institutions to
eschew the US.’ The OECD system is ‘even more stringent’
than FATCA, he argues. ‘If there is something missing that
proves difficult in practice, we will fix it. There is a common
understanding that standards may be updated to respond to
challenges that may emerge.’
While the debate continues, it is clear that when it
comes to business reporting of tax, both companies and
tax professionals need clarity, according to Chas RoyChowdhury, ACCA’s head of taxation. ‘If businesses need to
report, there should be just one international benchmark,’
he says. In his view, the system should be left to the OECD.
He argues too that it should be made clear that

19

information passed to tax authorities should remain with
them rather than being made public. ‘Making them public
would be very disappointing for businesses. France, for
example, already has statutes stating that this type of
information will be made public. That probably would not
help in creating greater transparency.’
Roy-Chowdhury also raises a point about the
responsibility of recipients of information to act on what
they learn: ‘We see this with money laundering regulations
too. A lot of information is exchanged but I would question
how much is actually used.’

Challenges ahead
Saint-Amans concedes that implementation will bring
challenges. ‘As with the international Financial Action Task
Force [FATF] standards, implementation will rely not only
on governments but on private operators such as banks,
trustees and others. We will have to be efficient and effective
in monitoring implementation to check that all private
intermediaries comply.’
On the question of new financial black holes emerging,
engaging nations yet to commit to the OECD

»
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standard will be ‘critical’, SaintAmans says. ‘It is good to have all
these initiatives, but at some point
they need to converge in the [OECD]
Global Forum on Transparency and
Exchange of Information for Tax
Purposes,’ he says.
This forum, whose 122 member
nations meet on an equal footing,
is the premier international body
for ensuring the implementation of
internationally agreed standards in
The British crown dependency of
being part of the EU, automatically
this area and will meet in Berlin,
Guernsey will adopt the OECD’s
exchanging tax information under the
Germany, in October.
proposed new AIE system, but does
EU law’s terms since 2011.
Setting aside emerging and
not foresee the need for major
‘We are also ready for the US
developing countries that are not
legislative change to consolidate
Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act
tax havens, and focusing purely on
it into local law. ‘We already apply
(FATCA) and a similar UK regime,’ Le
those that are financial centres,
many of these principles,’ said
Poidevin says.
Saint-Amans says that the OECD
Fiona Le Poidevin, chief executive of
Client information held in
expects that all of these will commit
Guernsey Finance.
Guernsey is currently shared with the
to the same ‘high standards with
Since 2001, for example,
local regulator and tax authorities and
a very ambitious time schedule
Guernsey’s corporate service
can be made available to international
and to AIE’.
providers have had to keep records of
tax authorities only under the specific
He adds: ‘We need a uniform
beneficial ownership and customer
terms of TIEAs and the EUSD.
global commitment from these in
due diligence.
This means that international tax
October so we can report to the
The Channel Islands bailiwick
authorities may ask for information
G20 on who has committed to the
has exchanged information for
from Guernsey and vice versa, but
standard and who has not.’
several years under bilateral tax
only in very limited and justified
Beyond technical details and
information exchange agreements
circumstances where some element
which countries have committed,
(TIEAs) and followed the 2003 EU
of fraud, evasion or other wrongdoing
a third consideration is changing
Savings Directive (EUSD), despite not
is reasonably suspected.
national legislation to incorporate
the new AIE system.
‘This will need a multilateral convention or bilateral
one year after being given notice to comply. This is a pretty
treaties,’ Saint-Amans explains. ‘We need all the CAAs to be
efficient way of dealing with some countries.’ ■
signed so that in 2017 the system can be implemented and
we can start monitoring implementation.’
Robert Stokes, journalist
While the OECD can only act within its remit, he
responded to criticism that the new standards could be
FOR MORE INFORMATION:
toothless without sanctions. ‘I can put in place stringent
monitoring, peer reviews, publicity and peer pressure,’ he
Standard for Automatic Exchange of Financial Account
says. ‘That is efficient. In the Global Forum on Transparency,
Information: Common Reporting Standard. OECD,
it is working. Look at the progress we have made in five
February 2014: http://tinyurl.com/ovwb538
years. You need to have someone big eye-balling you when
you do not do the job, and that is the role of the G20. The
Joint Statement by Early Adopters Group, March 2014:
very fact that we can report to the G20 means a country will
http://tinyurl.com/nj4g9ud
do all it can to move.’
This is because damage to reputation is the first
Declaration on Automatic Exchange of Information in Tax
sanction, he adds. Institutions such as the World Bank,
Matters. OECD Council at Ministerial Level, May 2014:
EBRD (European Bank for Reconstruction and Development),
https://tinyurl.com/14mroze
EIB (European Investment Bank) and national development
banks have investment policies that include checking if
OECD’s Automatic Information Exchange Standard: A
applicants for support comply with conventions.
watershed moment for fighting offshore tax evasion?
‘The EBRD and the World Bank will withdraw from
Tax Justice Network, March 2014:
countries that remain non-compliant with OECD conventions
http://tinyurl.com/p5ub9v3

GUERNSEY
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Clutter out, context in
Companies are moving towards a virtuous marriage of financial and non-financial
reporting to give shareholders a credible insight into the future, says Robert Bruce
It is remarkable how a succinct and
memorable few words can change
corporate culture more than any great
whirlwind of compliance measures.
All it took was a change in the UK
Corporate Governance Code less than
a couple of years ago laying down that
an audit committee should say whether
the annual report, ‘taken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the
company’s performance, business
model and strategy’.
Casual corporate parlance has
boiled this down to ‘fair, balanced and
understandable’. A child of six can
understand that. And board directors
seem to have cottoned on as well.
And, because it is clear, unambiguous
and capable of being understood by
anyone, they are taking it remarkably
seriously. ‘It has undoubtedly raised
questions behind closed doors as to
whether adequate checks and balances
are in place,’ concludes the latest
annual survey of FTSE 100 reporting
trends from consultancy Black Sun.
And maybe this sudden need for an
honest and unavoidable appraisal is
leading to other changes. Some 84%
of FTSE 100 companies now open
up their reporting with a personal
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statement from the chairman;
four years ago, only 17% did so.
It is clearly a catalyst. Douglas
Radcliffe, head of reporting and
operations, investor relations, at Lloyds
Bank, emphasises the importance of
‘fair, balanced and understandable’. He
says: ‘Having that tag is really helpful.’
And the impetus does seem to be
growing. The latest Guidance on The
Strategic Report from the Financial
Reporting Council (FRC) helps this

‘Ahead of the game’
There is greater confidence around.
‘Narrative reporting in the UK is ahead
of the game,’ says Deepa Raval, project
director for accounting and reporting
policy with the FRC. It is also an
opportunity to reconsider the traditional
structure of the annual report and
adopt one that allows a company to
best tell its story. And it stretches into
other rising forms of reporting as well.
The FRC made the point that reports

▌▌▌ INTEGRATED REPORTS SHOULD BE SHAPED
BY A COMPANY’S CULTURE AND IDIOSYNCRACIES,
AND BE RELATIVELY FREE OF OUTSIDE RESTRAINTS
along. ‘The strategic report should
be considered as the top layer of
information for shareholders,’ it says.
‘Some users may require a greater level
of detail. In this case, the strategic
report can be used to signpost to other
complementary information.’

which follow its guidance should
result in reporting which is consistent
with the International Integrated
Reporting Framework.
So the old territory of financial
reporting is converging with that of
integrated reporting, which offers a
seductive form of bringing together
all the ways in which a company, as
the jargon goes, creates value. As Paul
Druckman, CEO of the International
Integrated Reporting Council, is fond
of saying: ‘A balance sheet reports. It
rarely reflects.’
There are two strands here. The
first is trying to rid reports of the
extraneous stuff which clogs them up
– what the FRC calls ‘clutter’. You can
get rid of this in two ways: use clearer
language away from the boilerplate,
or use the idea of materiality to justify
hacking chunks of the stuff away. The
problem is that clutter will always be
defended and protected from within.
Vested interests and lawyers love it.
And the second strand is the way that,
as corporate culture changes, so the
use of non-financial reporting has
allowed the intellectual space to grow.
Both changes can be encouraged
by the same means. Clutter can be
cleansed from reports by invoking the
‘logic’ of clear English. ‘Knowledge
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is power if you know what to ignore,’
says Simon Howard, chief executive
of the UK Sustainable Investment
and Finance Association. And the
growth in the use of key performance
indicators (KPIs) can lead, almost
imperceptibly, to a position where the
sort of integrated thinking required
takes hold.
It is all about slow but decisive
changes to the corporate culture. This
becomes clear in some of the figures
from the Black Sun survey, which says:
‘The numbers of companies
providing KPIs has
consistently been high with
over 93% of companies
providing this data for the
last five years. However,
it is the continued
increase in non-financial
KPI disclosure which
stands out, with 74%
of companies providing
these measures.’
‘People never did that
before,’ says Sallie Pilot,
director of research and
strategy at Black Sun.

Breathe and grow
And so the linkage required to allow
integrated reporting the space to
breathe and grow is created. ‘This
year saw a marked improvement in the
number of companies demonstrating a
link between group strategy and KPIs
increasing to 83%,’ says the survey.
The downside is that financial
reporting is ‘data-heavy’, as Lucinda
Bell, finance director at British Land,
made plain at the recent Non-Financial
Reporting Forum, organised by Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) training
partner Lodestar, working with Deloitte,
GRI and ACCA. But this can act as a

springboard for non-financial reporting.
She made the point that because
financial reporting is heavily regulated
it tends not to encourage talk about
what might happen in the future.
But the future is what society, in the
general sense, is interested in. This is
where non-financial reporting comes
into its own. It is not heavily regulated.
Druckman often makes the point that
integrated reports, for example, should
be shaped by a company’s particular
culture and idiosyncrasies, and be

CONTEXT FOR SHAREHOLDERS
The Financial Reporting Council makes it clear in its guidance that: ‘The
overriding objective of the strategic report is to provide information for
shareholders that will enable them to assess how the directors have
performed their duty to promote the success of the company. It should
reflect the directors’ view of the company and provide context for the
related financial statements. In meeting the needs of shareholders,
the information in the annual report may also be of interest to other
shareholders. The annual report should not, however, be seen as a
replacement for other forms of reporting addressed to other stakeholders.’

relatively free of outside restraints. As
a result, non-financial reporting can
also feel much freer to provide the
user with a better idea of what might
happen in the future.
It all steers reporting towards a
much more useful place. Lois Guthrie,
executive director of the Climate
Disclosure Standards Board, told the
Non-Financial Reporting Forum: ‘Value
manifests itself through reputational
and competitive advantage.’ At the
same event, Howard said: ‘There is real
value in developing a good reputation.’
Any shift, seismic or otherwise,
which moves reporting in that direction
should be applauded. Companies, as
all the surveys show, are doing so in
growing numbers. ■
Robert Bruce is an accountancy
commentator and journalist
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

The FRC’s Guidance on The
Strategic Report is at http://
tinyurl.com/FRC14
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Sustainability masters
Our long and honourable record on sustainability issues makes accountants the go-to
profession for a key business requirement, says ACCA president Martin Turner
ACCA has long been at the forefront of thinking and developments
in sustainability and environmental issues. I remember
regularly being asked in the early days of ACCA’s
sustainability activities more than 20 years ago, why
accountants were getting involved in environmental
issues. ‘Surely,’ they would say, ‘you should just
stick to the numbers?’
Well, many more people in the business
world now ‘get it’. They understand that finance
professionals play a crucial role in sustainability,
particularly since it has become ever more
apparent that organisations can’t manage what
they don’t measure.
But our role goes far beyond the
measurement of business activity and its impact.
The global accountancy profession has an
important role in making organisations more
responsible and accountable in the pursuit of
sustainable development. To this end, we recently
published a policy paper called Sustainability
Matters that brings together ACCA’s thinking on six
sustainability-related issues: sustainability reporting;
integrated reporting; the assurance of non-financial
reporting and disclosure; climate change; natural
capital; and the green economy.
Over the last 20 years there has been a big rise
in the number of organisations working to address
their sustainability impacts. The driver has been a
growing demand from investors, customers, staff and
NGOs for organisations to operate more sustainably, with
some governments telling listed companies to address their
environmental and social impacts and report on their practices.
ACCA believes that accountants in every sector have an
important role to play not only in sustainability metrics, but
also in communicating and verifying reliable information.
The profession has worked hard to develop financial
reporting and auditing standards that can be applied
worldwide, and it can offer valuable lessons in
doing the same for sustainability reporting.
Our profession is well placed to help
businesses and wider economies
achieve a more sustainable future.
We should ensure that we remain
at the forefront of this critical
issue. ■
Martin Turner FCCA is a
management consultant in
the UK health sector

Sustainability Matters is
at www.accaglobal.com/
accountability
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Grate expectations
Performance management systems that are solely concerned with exhorting staff to do
more and do it better provoke resentment and disengagement, says Peter Williams
The quote attributed to legendary
management consultant and father of
quality control Edward Deming, that
‘no one goes to work to do a bad job’,
paints a positive, almost Pollyannaish,
view of human nature. But it may be one
that bosses should hang onto as they
survey the efforts of their employees.
Few of us go to work intent on doing
actual harm, but observation of office
life – and any cursory self-analysis
of differing levels of motivation and
enthusiasm – suggests that work, even
when you are there and being paid, is
not always top of life’s to-do list.
The implication of the Deming bon
mot is that if work is badly done then
there must be another factor at work:
perhaps poor tools or processes, or the
work required has not been sufficiently
well explained.
Perhaps if organisations bought into
the idea that no one goes to work to do
a bad job then there would be no need
for performance management. But
reviews, assessments and appraisals
at the end of projects and assignments
are alive and thriving and apparently a
permanent fixture on the work scene.
They are also, according to research
by the Chartered Institute of Personnel
and Development, massively resented
by a significant minority of employees.

For just about a year the CIPD has
been tracking attitudes to performance
management and the latest figures
suggest that workers’ trust and
confidence in leaders has fallen to a
two-year low.
This matters – not only because you
get a warm glow when someone thinks
you’ve done a good or excellent job, but
because performance is linked to pay
and promotion.
As well as feeling that performance
management systems are unfair,
almost a third of employees feel that
progression within the organisation
is unachievable for them, with one in
five stating that their managers do not
effectively communicate objectives
and expectations.
Even allowing for a little bit of
employee whinging here – and let’s
face it, we all fall prey to a bit of
that every now and again – that
suggests a level of disenchantment

that cannot be good for the individual
or the organisation
It would be naive to think that you
could just junk your performance
management systems. But the figures
suggest that a rethink is needed on
what works. The clichéd response is to
ensure that performance management
processes are clear and consistent and
used to align employees to the vision
of the organisation. It’s also important,
says the CIPD, that processes are used
to strengthen the manager-employee
relationship where regular coaching
and feedback are the norm. But at
a time when so much is changing so
rapidly within both private and public
sector organisations, keeping that up
to date and relevant is a real challenge,
even for the best leaders.
There’s a phrase in the software
development industry that ‘good
enough is good enough’. It is
sometimes rendered as ‘good enough
is best’ in education and consultantspeak to express the idea, coined by
Voltaire, that perfection is the enemy
of good. This doesn’t mean that we
workers should be shoddy in our
approach, or lethargic or rude. But it
does mean that for most of us we’re
going to do just enough to get the task
finished so we can get on with the
other stuff, especially as too many of
us still spend too much time working.
While we want to do a good job,
even a better job, we also need to get
on with the rest of our lives. To have
a column or box in the appraisal form
explaining how in theory we could have
done better, or exhorting us to put in
more effort, simply isn’t going to work.
What is going to work is regular
and genuinely two-way communication
where problems with poor processes
or irritating tools can be raised as
well as bosses’ shifting expectations.
Performance management should be
the art of the possible with a liberal
sprinkling of the aspirational. ■
Peter Williams is an accountant
and journalist
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Being frank
Reasonable reactions from investors to frank disclosures from companies will be required
if the proposed ‘ongoing viability’ statement is going to be effective, says Jane Fuller
It is two years since Lord Sharman
published his final report, Going
concern and liquidity risks: lessons
for companies and auditors. Among
the laudable aims were that directors
should think about threats to the
company’s existence over the business
cycle and be more open with investors
about the risks.
Yet the Financial Reporting Council
has struggled to put Sharman’s fine
words into practice. The third, and
hopefully final, version is contained in
proposed revisions to the UK Corporate
Governance Code.
This should see the birth of a new
statement, made by the board, ‘of the
company’s ongoing viability’. It would
appear in the narrative part of the
annual report, with the ‘going concern’
statement continuing to introduce the
financial statements as the basis for
the accounting.
So, what will an ‘ongoing viability’
statement add to the statements of
principal risks already prescribed by
UK and European Union regulation?
It can be seen as a high-level
counterweight to the positive stuff
about the business model and ‘value
drivers’: instead, what would threaten
the company’s existence?
This goes beyond principal risks
and uncertainties, which reflect current
preoccupations and some perennial
threats, ideally with the mitigating
action. Indeed, it could become the
bottom line of this section, or the
‘what-if’ line, including open discussion
of the company’s resilience if disaster
does strike.
The danger is that in watering down
the original wording on viability to
‘reasonable expectation’ (rather than
‘high degree of confidence’) and in
leaving boards to pick the assessment
period, we will just see a colloquial
version of the accounting policy. After
all, it will always be possible to argue
that it was ‘reasonable’ for Northern
Rock’s board to assume that wholesale
funding markets would stay open for
the next 12 months.

To counter this, here are three
points that would add real value:
Company and sector-specific
reporting. Different sectors
have different cycles. Some are
vulnerable to economic downturns,
others to a mismatch between the

*

investment cycle and future product
prices, others to huge legal bills if
people are harmed. The ‘what-if’
section should include a discussion
of how the company’s approach
compares with its peers or the
industry norm.
Resilience. Related is the company’s
financial resilience. Can it withstand
an explosion at an oil rig off the
shore of the most litigious country
in the world? BP had considerable
loss-absorbing reserves (topped up
by ongoing profits), sold assets and
cut the dividend. HSBC survived
with a rights issue; RBS had to
turn to the taxpayer. Some detail
on both the stress testing and what
bank regulators call ‘recovery’ plans
would be welcome.
Forecasting period. This is less
helpful. Who knows when disaster
will strike? Banks might have said
in 2006: ‘We’re fine so long as
Gordon Brown really has abolished
boom and bust.’ Or any company
in a dangerous industry might
say: ‘We’re fine until there’s a fatal
accident.’ I would prefer a board to
focus on what the threats to viability
are, not on the impossible job of
saying they will not occur for the
next X years.
No one has a crystal ball and there are
no guarantees. By definition, a board
cannot discuss the unknown unknowns:
there should be no illusion that
everything has been thought of and is
under control.
This addition to commentary on
risks and uncertainties can only work if
it encourages frank disclosure by
the board and reasonable reactions
from investors; demands for (false)
assurance run counter to that. Users of
accounts should welcome any extra
help in forming their own riskreward judgments. ■

*

*

Jane Fuller is former financial editor
of the Financial Times and co-director
of the Centre for the Study of Financial
Innovation thinktank
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The view from

‘

TO BE INVOLVED IN SUCH A HIGH-PROFILE
ORGANISATION WITH A GREEN MISSION
HAS MADE ME PROUD TO BE IN THE BANKING
INDUSTRY AGAIN’ MATTHEW GOSLING FCCA,
FINANCE BUSINESS PARTNER, UK GREEN
INVESTMENT BANK
SNAPSHOT:
UK OIL AND GAS
INDUSTRY

My role at UK Green Investment Bank
(GIB) is to enable investment goals
to be met by representing finance in
the deal process, as both a support
and a control function. My areas of
focus are transaction structure, asset
and income recognition, taxation
compliance and related costs. I also
forecast capital commitment and
deployment, which is particularly
relevant given the way in which we
are currently funded.
Having worked in large financial
services organisations prior to GIB,
the main skill I have had to develop
is approaching every task from
a commercial point of view. This
has been a bigger challenge than I
expected. At GIB, everyone has to roll
their sleeves up and muck in with tasks
that in larger organisations would be
passed to another team or department.
The nature of the role requires a
much wider technical knowledge than
my previous roles and, as a result,
I have had a steep learning curve to
reacquaint myself with the finer points
of International Financial Reporting
Standards. However, having the
ACCA Qualification gives prospective
employers, clients and stakeholders a
level of comfort that I will be competent
and trustworthy enough to be given a
chance to be a part of their business.
Every investment considered by
GIB must pass through a robust
green impact assessment process
before it can be approved. It is then
subject to detailed and continuous
monitoring, spanning all aspects of
its green performance.

Being part of GIB is my biggest
achievement to date. To be involved in
such a high-profile organisation with a
green mission has made me proud to
be in the banking industry again. GIB’s
unique position to be balancing a double
bottom line rather than just focusing on
financial metrics is a refreshing change.
To fully wind down from work, I like
to spend time on the beaches and
in the clubs of Ibiza. Running is how
I relieve stress in between holidays,
and my weekends usually incorporate
a couple of runs, in between watching
as much rugby as I can get away with.
The recent arrival of our first child is
likely to have a negative impact on
at least one of these activities, but
I haven’t figured out which one yet! ■
Interested in appearing on this page?
If so, please email Caroline Rheubottom
Caroline.Rheubottom@accaglobal.com

As environmentalists and
scientists across the globe
are charged with finding
sustainable energy sources,
those working in the oil and
gas industry have to contend
with demand from all sides
to be ethical and green,
all in a heavily politicised
environment that has seen
conflicts for decades.
The global impact of shale
oil could revolutionise the
world’s energy markets over
the next couple of decades,
resulting in lower oil prices
than would otherwise be
the case and a consequent
increase of about £500-£800
in GDP per person in the UK.
Adam Lyons, oil and gas
director shale oil, PwC, says:
‘With North Sea resources
in long-term decline, we can
create a new growth engine
for UK plc if we seize the
opportunity presented by the
growth of this new resource
in the UK and overseas. In
the UK, significant shale gas
resources have been identified
and these are a good leading
indicator of the potential for
shale oil also to be found.’

42%

According to Lukoil’s report,
Global Trends in Oil and Gas
Markets to 2025, OPEC
countries currently control
42% of global oil production.
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Pension power
Continuing our series on ACCA members inside big-name organisations,
we meet two finance professionals at Capita Employee Benefits
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schemes every year (clients include
Network Rail, Fiat Group and Nissan),
and controls over 900 bank accounts
for the schemes it administers. Of the
department’s 71 staff, 20 are qualified
accountants (including 16 ACCA
members) while 17 are studying for
an accountancy qualification (13 are
ACCA students).
We meet in CEB’s Sheffield HQ, a
building that will be familiar to anyone
who has driven into the city. The upper
floors have a terrific view of Sheffield
and the Peak District beyond.

Career opportunities
For local, ambitious youngsters,
Capita is a very well-known employer
(CEB is one of three Capita offices
in Sheffield that deal with, among
other things, television licensing). The
employee benefits business is probably
less well known than other Capita
divisions yet it is one of the best for
opportunities. Its website talks about
its ‘talented, interesting people, who

£310m

Client money handled
daily

4m

BASICS

As a career option for accountants,
the pensions industry doesn’t get the
best of press. It is difficult to pinpoint
why, but the fact that pensions has a
financial language all of its own might
have a lot to do with it.
It is a pity, because the pensions
and employee benefits sector is a
gold mine of career opportunities for
ACCA-trained accountants, stuffed full
of good, fast-growing companies; the
training is excellent and the industry is
varied and interesting. It takes just a
few minutes in the company of Sarah
Williams and Ruth Hough, two ACCA
members with the scheme finances
department at Capita Employee
Benefits (CEB), to be convinced.
‘There is a risk that working in
pensions and employee benefits could
restrict our career options in a sense,
because we are seen as specialists
and we don’t get to see every side of
accounting,’ concedes Williams, ‘but
that’s only because people often don’t
understand what our role is about.
Essentially, we do the same as a
company accountant. The income and
expenses are still there, they’re just
called something different.’
Williams joined Capita from a small
firm. ‘Pension-scheme accounting
was something new to me when I first
came here,’ she says, ‘but it didn’t put
me off. It is different from the usual
company accounting and reporting,
but not that different. It’s mainly the
language that varies.’ Hough smiles
in agreement. ‘I carried an A to Z of
pensions around with me for weeks
when I started here,’ she adds.
CEB was formed in 2012 when
Capita Hartshead, the pensions
administration and consultancy
business that had its origins in
the water authorities’ industrywide pension scheme, acquired the
employee benefits consultancy Bluefin
Corporate Consulting. Owned by FTSE
100 company Capita, it is one of
the UK’s largest employee benefits
consultancies, employing 2,400 people
across the UK. CEB has more than
1,200 corporate clients and looks
after over four million pension scheme
members and company employees.
The scheme finances department, in
which both Hough and Williams work,
is the central department for scheme
finance and treasury. It prepares
some 500 sets of accounts for client

Number of scheme
members looked after
by administration
section

£14bn

Annual pension
payments

£90bn

Scheme assets under
management

2,400

Employees across
the UK

1,200

Corporate clients

▌▌▌‘YOU ARE GIVEN INCREASINGLY COMPLEX
SCHEMES AND GET INVOLVED WITH BIDDING
FOR CLIENTS, AND MENTORING STAFF’
know their stuff’ and, for once, it’s
not all corporate flannel. The utmost
emphasis is placed on development
and training, as Williams and Hough
can attest.
Williams joined Capita from a small
local firm, where she had completed
the training for the AAT qualification.
‘I wanted to go into practice and was
looking for all-round experience,’ she
says. ‘I stayed with the firm for four
years, but I was really interested in
working abroad at some stage, so
started to look for a company that had
some international possibilities.’
At Capita she started the ACCA
Qualification, which she saw as the
best all-round finance option. Since
qualifying in 2011 she has begun
studying for specialist qualifications
and will take the Pensions Management
Institute’s Retirement Provision
Certificate later this year. ‘For my role,
the ACCA Qualification is enough, but
there are opportunities to study more.’
Hough joined the company as a
trainee fund accountant in 2009, after

taking time out to travel. ‘I studied
maths at Leeds and was looking for
a job that was numbers-based, so I
suppose this was a natural choice,’ she
says. She embarked on ACCA training
and qualified earlier this year. ‘It
really helped, I think, starting entirely
from scratch as a trainee in scheme
accounting,’ she says.
Training was hard work, but the
company tries to make the programme
adaptable. ‘Capita has a very flexible
study programme, which meant that
you could choose to study at weekends
or evenings, or take a block release for
a course if that suits you better. I think
I used just about all the options that
were available at one time or another.’
Aside from the dedicated study,
most of the learning comes through
the day-to-day job, says Hough. ‘There
is a lot of on-the-job training. Everyone
is assigned a mentor when they join,
who guides you through everything. If
you don’t know something, you ask.’
Scheme accountants are allocated
a client portfolio, beginning with

»
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SARAH WILLIAMS
2012

CV

Promoted
to assistant
scheme
accounting
manager.

2011

Gained ACCA
Qualification.

2008

Joined Capita
Employee Benefits as
a scheme accountant.

2003

Semi-senior,
West and Foster
chartered accountants.

2001

Accounts assistant,
Peter Hoare & Co,
insurance brokers.

the less complex schemes. ‘Then you
are given more complex schemes
and get involved with bidding for
clients, mentoring staff, and individual
projects as they come up,’ explains
Williams. ‘When we merged with
Bluefin, for example, the accounting
was centralised in Sheffield, and I was
involved with that.’

Rapid expansion
Partly owing to the Bluefin acquisition,
CEB has expanded rapidly in the six
years since Williams joined: ‘The
size of my department has doubled,
which means there are a lot more
opportunities,’ she says. She was
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recently promoted to assistant scheme
manager (each of the department’s five
teams has a manager, two assistant
managers and 11 others), which means
she spends a lot of time peer-reviewing
the team’s work.
‘I’m really lucky,’ she says, ‘I love
my job. When I first came here, my
manager asked me if it was what
I expected, and I probably thought
before I joined that, because the
company is so big, I would just be a
number. But I’m not. Everyone is very
approachable and friendly. You don’t
get lost in the crowd.’
They both struggle to describe
a typical day, as their work varies
according to the time of year and
clients’ needs. Most schemes have
a year-end of March or April, so it’s
particularly busy then, but they rarely
know exactly what they will be doing
on any one day. Individual and one-off
projects – Hough has been involved
in improving the in-house accounting
system, for example – supplement
their regular work. ‘One of the best
things about the job is that there’s a
lot of variety. And we manage our own
workload,’ says Hough.
As the department deals mainly
with final salary schemes, budgeting
and cashflow management form a
significant part of their work. ‘Every
scheme is different: they all have their
own rules,’ says Hough. ‘So you have to
know exactly what’s going on with each
one. And each client varies; some don’t
want too much from us but others want
detailed monthly or quarterly reports.’
The schemes are more than just
sets of figures. ‘I spend a lot of time
talking to my clients,’ says Williams.
‘You’re always aware that behind the
numbers are the members of the
pension scheme, and what happens is
very important indeed to them.’
The big question is whether a
pension scheme accountant needs
unique skills. ‘You definitely need
patience,’ says Hough. They add a few
other talents – organisational skills, the
ability to work on your own and to tight
deadlines. ‘There’s also the confidence
element,’ says Williams. ‘We work
directly with clients and are the face
of their scheme, so we have to know
everything about it.’
You need to be logical, too, says
Hough, but adds that that is true of
any accountants in any discipline.

RUTH HOUGH
2014

Gained ACCA
Qualification.

2011

CV
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Promoted to fund
accountant.

2009

Joined Capita
Employee Benefits
as a trainee scheme
accountant.

2008

Travelled for a year.

2006

Account manager,
Decree Thermo,
maker of scissors and
cutting tools.
Graduated from
Leeds University.

‘I cheer sometimes when something
balances,’ she laughs.
But they have to convince family
and friends they are not necessarily the
best people to give retirement advice.
‘People tend to think that you are a
pensions expert,’ says Hough, ‘but I
keep having to explain that I deal with
the finance side of pension schemes,
so I can’t tell them what to do about
their retirement. Having said that, I
did go through the Budget this year
looking for all the announcements
about pensions, so something must be
rubbing off.’ ■
Liz Fisher, journalist
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WORLD COMPETITIVENESS

▼LITTLE CHANGE AT THE TOP

According to the latest IMD World Competitiveness Center’s annual rankings, the US retains the number
one spot in 2014, reflecting the resilience of its economy, better employment numbers and its dominance
in technology and infrastructure. There are no big changes among the top 10. Small economies such as
Singapore and Hong Kong continue to prosper thanks to exports, business efficiency and innovation. Most
big emerging markets slid in the rankings as economic growth and foreign investment slow.

#1 US
#3 HONG KONG
#4 IRELAND
#5 MALAYSIA
#7 SINGAPORE
#18 UK
#28 CHINA

#23 CHINA (▼)
#16 UK (▲)
#15 IRELAND (▲)
#12 MALAYSIA (▲)
#4 HONG KONG (▼)
#3 SINGAPORE (▲)
#2 SWITZERLAND (■)
#1 US (■)

▲BUSINESS EFFICIENCY

In the ranking of which enterprises are
performing in an innovative, profitable and
responsible manner, the US came top, with
Hong Kong in third place, and Ireland fourth.
Greece was ranked near the bottom (54th).

▼REGIONAL PERFORMERS

‘There’s no single recipe for a country to climb the
competitiveness rankings; much depends on local context,’
said Arturo Bris, director, IMD World Competitiveness Center.

#4 TAIWAN

#2 HONG KONG

#1 SINGAPORE

#3 MALAYSIA

#5 AUSTRALIA

#4 UAE

#2 SWEDEN

#1 SWITZERLAND

#3 GERMANY

#5 DENMARK

#4 MEXICO

#2 CANADA

#1 US

#3 CHILE

#5 PERU

ABOUT THE SURVEY

IMD is a top-ranked business school. The World Competitiveness Yearbook is recognised as the leading annual
report on the competitiveness of nations. The yearbook was due to be published as Accounting and Business
went to press. Download the full list at: http://tinyurl.com/klulv2l
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THE FUTURE IS
CROWDSOURCING

Innovation is what R&D is about, but now the R&D model itself has been taken over by a
whole new approach – looking outside the company walls for new product and service ideas

M

ore than half the manufacturers of consumer goods
will achieve 75% of their consumer innovation and
research and development (R&D) capabilities via
crowdsourcing within three years. That, at least, is
the prediction of consultancy Gartner – to a mixed reaction
from companies and academics in the area. One thing they
are virtually all agreed upon, though, is that crowdsourcing
is developing rapidly and has disruptive consequences.
Crowdsourcing means obtaining services, ideas or
information by soliciting contributions from a large group
of people – usually online – rather than from traditional
sources. Organisations have already found a huge range of
uses for crowdsourcing, from improving sales techniques to
building predictive models and designing adverts. A mining
company even used it to find elusive gold reserves.
A recent article in New Scientist proposed that
crowdsourcing can even ‘fix’ the internet by protecting it
from complex bugs like Heartbleed.
Gartner said that engineers, scientists, IT professionals
and marketers at consumer-goods companies are now
engaging the intellect and opinion of crowds much more
aggressively. It sees a massive shift toward such applications
of crowdsourcing as online communities, scientific problem
solving, and internally and externally created products.
The consultancy also predicted that consumer-goods
companies using crowdsourced solutions in marketing or
product development will have added 1% more to their
revenue by 2015 than non-crowdsourcing rivals.

The trailblazers
Large brands and companies such as Doritos, Starbucks
and Procter & Gamble (P&G) have led the way. Thousands
of businesses are now thought to be using so-called idea
exchanges, where customers post suggestions and vote on
features suggested by others.
But Jonathan Price, visiting lecturer at the London
School of Business & Finance (LSBF), sums it up when he
says: ‘The numbers using open innovation platforms look
impressive by themselves, but in market share terms they
are infinitesimal.’
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Matt Greeley, CEO of Brightidea, says: ‘Global spend
on R&D is $1.4 trillion. To say the majority of that will
go toward crowdsourcing within two years is unrealistic.
However, crowdsourcing is highly disruptive to R&D
and will continue to take a larger slice every year. New,
collaborative innovation models are catching on fast, in a
big way. Crowdsourcing is likely to disrupt a large segment
of the global economy.’
Greeley highlights P&G as a prime example of how
businesses are using the new product-development model.
More than 50% of the company’s product initiatives involve
significant external collaboration, and it expects externally
sourced innovation to contribute more than $3bn in 2015.
However, Dr Steve Priddy FCCA, head of research at LSBF,
dismisses Gartner’s claim as ‘rubbish’. ‘Crowdsourcing is
not going to displace the R&D function of firms as diverse
as Unilever, Shell or Arup,’ he says. ‘It may impact more on
“gazelle” startups, which are excellent for crowdsourcers.’
Techniques such as asking fashion blog readers about
their favourite colours have enabled businesses like The
Cambridge Satchel Company to achieve rapid growth from
almost nothing, says Priddy.
Dave Nelsen, president of Dialog Consulting Group,
also doubts that crowdsourcing will become so pervasive
soon – if ever. ‘But it will be a huge trend,’ he adds.
‘It’s brainstorming meets focus group meets democracy.
For example, over six years, Starbucks has implemented
more than 300 ideas based on customer suggestions
and voting. Why should a company plan its products
and services using just the people inside its four walls?
Customers live in the real world, there are more of them,
and they have lots of good ideas.’
100%Open has helped run many crowdsourcing
campaigns for a wide range of companies and non-profit
organisations – it claims a tenfold return on investment for
open-innovation projects.
Co-founder Roland Harwood says: ‘There are some great
examples of how crowdsourcing has made a real difference
in all sorts of industries and applications, from Wikipedia
to citizen science. Whoever you are, not all the smart people
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work for you. This has always been
true, but more recently, simple web
tools have made it possible to engage
them in innovation activities effectively.
This has made open innovation
increasingly necessary to build and
sustain competitive advantage.’

▌▌▌‘CROWDSOURCING IS NOT FOR THE
FAINT-HEARTED, BUT IT SHOULD FORM PART
OF A BALANCED INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO’

Potential pitfalls
But crowdsourcing also brings many potential difficulties.
Some claim one of the biggest is that it can be used to
exploit desperate people by offering minimal or unfair
rewards – a practice dubbed ‘serfing the internet’.
Michael Mainelli, executive chairman of Z/Yen Group
and a member of ACCA’s Global Forum for Governance, Risk
and Performance, says: ‘In R&D, intellectual property is a
nightmare. The biggest problem is that I can’t crowdsource
something unless I can identify the IP rights.’ He says
some companies have offered ‘egregious contracts’ for
crowdsourced ideas, pressuring people to give up their rights
for a relatively small pay-off. ‘You only need a few like that to
queer the pitch,’ he says. ‘We need a reform of IP before we
can use these techniques.’
Priddy agrees: ‘The growing danger is a lack of regulation
over crowdsourcing. It is not for the faint-hearted, but it
should form part of a balanced investment portfolio.’
Mainelli adds that so-called crowdworking – for example,
accessing the global IT talent pool to write pieces of
computer code – is already proving successful and is a more
effective use of the crowdsourcing technique at present.
Academics also point out that crowdsourcing is limited
in that it can usually only be used for ideas rather than the
whole R&D process. Bettina von
Stamm, director at the Innovation
Leadership Forum, says: ‘In
most cases, open innovation
is a misnomer. These
platforms are mostly only
generating ideas. They don’t
collaborate to implement
the ideas, which is what
innovation is about.’
She also points out that
successful crowdsourcing requires
organisations to publish details
of their plans online that they
may not wish their competitors
to read.
Harwood says another
downside could be the
tendency towards
mediocrity, as herd
behaviour gravitates
towards obvious ideas,
unless the project is

properly managed, moderated and incentivised. ‘Another
pitfall is building expectation in your crowd that cannot
be fulfilled. This can lead to a backlash of disappointed
participants but can be avoided by careful and frequent
communication about what you are doing and why at each
stage,’ says Harwood, who adds that crowdsourcing is not
about getting something for nothing. ‘It requires a lot of
work and some investment to make it work,’ he says.

Effective measurement
Von Stamm says methods for measuring the effectiveness
of crowdsourcing will depend on the context. ‘If you want
a small improvement for an existing product, it’s simple to
measure. But radical innovation requires more care because
if you measure too much you might kill it. It might be better
to measure the success of the whole portfolio rather than
individual projects. Many ideas will fail, but a few will succeed
and perform much better than any incremental innovation.’
The possibilities opened up by crowdsourcing might
call for finance to be more flexible, says Von Stamm. ‘Most
of the existing measurement tools are geared towards

»

▲ SMALL BEGINNINGS

Yellow, a Lego sculpture made
of 11,014 bricks by US artist
Nathan Sawaya, part of his
The Art of the Brick exhibition.
Lego’s crowdsourcing
project, Cuusoo, has led to
the commercially successful
creation of six Lego sets
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risk elimination and certainty.
“Ambidextrous” organisations excel
at incremental innovation and the
Toymaker Lego’s Cuusoo programme
passes final review, the crowdsourced
opposite, almost contradictory
mind and skillset required for
has many of the aspects of a good
designers receive 1% of total net
innovation excellence. I am making
crowdsourcing project. As well
sales of the product.
gross generalisations, but some
as sourcing talent and ideas from
Lego Cuusoo started in 2008 and
finance people tend to focus more on
the global market, it uses the web
has so far led to the creation of six
details, whereas innovation requires
to judge the popularity of ideas
sets. 100%Open has worked with
a focus on the bigger picture. With
before they launch; and it uses a
Lego on its crowdsourcing strategy.
crowdsourcing you can’t plan for the
staged approach.
Co-founder Roland Harwood says:
solutions to come.’
Participants submit ideas for Lego
‘Crowdsourcing works better in
Harwood says it is important
products. They create a page about
digital industries where the rate of
to calculate not only direct return
their proposed idea for a Lego set
developing ideas is much faster than
on investment but also softer
and seek supporters and feedback
product or manufacturing-based
measurements such as net
from others. Once their proposal
businesses, but Lego Cuusoo shows
promoter score. A major by-product
accrues 10,000 supporters, the
that it also works here. Cuusoo is a
of customer crowdsourcing is that
Cuusoo team reviews it and decides
clever way to develop and market new
they can become more engaged with
whether to produce it commercially.
products before you’ve spent money
your brand and products.
The team also comments on project
on production. Lego tracks ROI and
Greeley says tracking the
pages when they amass 1,000 and
several of the sets have enjoyed
financial impact for the company
5,000 supporters. If the project
incredible commercial success.’
is nonetheless essential. ‘We define
an innovation outcome as dollars
returned to the business – this could be cost reduction or
believe. You could give people
revenue growth,’ he says. ‘Our customers have tracked
tokens to play in the market which
over $500m in impact from crowdsourcing,
turn into prizes. It allows you to
so there is compelling evidence of its
see which projects people really
positive effect.
think are going places,’ he says.
‘The counter-point is what if you did
‘Another development is that
not crowdsource? Would you identify
people are starting to look at how
and work on the same opportunities or
we infer things from the behaviour of
ones with equivalent impact? There is no
crowds and second-order effects. So
way to tell, but there is strong anecdotal
we can already guess what you were
evidence suggesting that breaking down
thinking about before you got there.’
silos [via internal crowdsourcing] allows
Harwood says that, despite its pitfalls, crowdsourcing
employees to connect more dots across
is set to have radical effects. ‘It could be applied almost
geographic and functional boundaries
anywhere – some of my favourite current ideas are around
than they otherwise would.
crowdsourcing engineering, architecture and government
‘Crowdsourcing can cast a wider
policies,’ he says. ‘Since we have become exponentially more
net and engage more employees in
connected, organisations are being turned inside out. In the
your most pressing business challenges
future, big organisations won’t do innovation, they will merely
for faster solutions. Pitfalls arise if
manage it. The real creativity will come from outside.’
you use it as a gimmick. If you don’t
Nelsen adds: ‘People can collaborate from everywhere.
try to solve real business challenges,
This will impact almost every organisation that is based
employees realise something is amiss –
primarily on intellectual contributions, including accountants.
participation and motivation ceases.’
The mechanisms for collaborating and integrating knowledge
Mainelli says a refinement of
will keep improving. The ultimate potential of crowdsourcing
crowdsourcing is to create a
is unlocking our collective intelligence.’ ■
market for ideas, rather than
simply relying on online votes,
Tim Cooper, journalist
for example. ‘In the highly
political environment of a large
◄ REACHING OUT
establishment, it’s hard to tell
Children perform at the opening ceremony of the First
which version of the truth to
Lego League Open European Championship in Spain

LEGO CLICKS WITH CUUSOO
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FROM A TO B

While change is always hard, if transformation programmes are to achieve their aims
it is vital that finance leaders take ownership of the process, says ACCA’s Jamie Lyon

M

any CFOs have a good understanding of the
current state of their finance function – and
a clear vision of what it ought to be like.
Rationalisation, new processes, better technology
and even entirely different working models such as shared
service centres or outsourcing can all be important and
compelling components of that vision.
The challenge lies in getting from A to B. Managing
change is critical to turning the vision into a reality in sync
with the business case for the transformation programme.
But finance people may sometimes be too rational,
and assume that the bright, shining logic of the ambition
and the promised ROI will be enough to bring about the
change. Finance leaders who assume the bald facts are
all that is needed to get their teams to fully engage with a
transformation project and deliver it are in for a culture shock.
As is clear from ACCA’s recent report, Transformation
challenges in finance, finance leaders must fully invest in
change management, get the right sponsors to support
their project, deal effectively with stakeholders, obtain the
necessary resources and keep the transformation on the
corporate radar.

The need for change
One of the problems for organisations trying to transform
the finance function is that, often, people simply don’t see
the need for it. It is easier to make an enthusiastic case
for change when an industry is going through a period of
rapid transformation – perhaps because of the internet, for
example – or if competitors are stealing a march. And if the
CEO and the rest of the board set out to change the strategy
of the business, then that too can be a powerful force that
brings about change across the whole organisation.
However, if the business environment is relatively benign
and the strategy is one of steady as she goes, then it is
much more difficult to convince people of the need to
change their familiar ways of working. But as Chris Gunning,
vice president for global shared services at Unisys, says:
‘Finance leaders need to be proactive rather than reactive,
sitting and waiting for an organisational indicator. I think we
should be steering the vision and the strategy of finance.’
Patrick Hicks, service owner for global finance services
at GlaxoSmithKline, puts it a bit more colourfully, saying
that ‘when there is no burning platform, it’s critical to create
discontent with the status quo as a scare factor’.

All well and good – but CFOs wanting to embark on
ambitious change programmes at a time when the rest
of the enterprise is ‘business as usual’ will have to first
engage with and then secure a mandate from their CEO.
That does not mean delegating upwards; it does mean that,
as Gunning says: ‘If the cynics in the business don’t want
to get on board with the finance transformation, you do

»
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CHECKLIST FOR CHANGE
There is little ambiguity about
the secret of effective finance
function transformation.
Whether leaders outsource
or run their own captive
shared services centres,
whether they move quickly
or evolve the model over
time, the requirements
are the same.

Clear vision
Without a clear vision
for the finance function,
it is difficult to win over
stakeholders. It is critical to
spend time conveying the vision
of the future state, then getting
stakeholders to believe in the vision
and its potential for success.

Senior management commitment
If the CEO is not actively supporting the change or
is not seen as being supportive of it, then there
is no chance that finance function transformation
will provide the anticipated benefits. While the
CEO’s support is key, whether this support will
involve merely blessing the initiative or giving it
active support will depend on the scope of the
transformation sought.

Communication
If stakeholders do not understand what is changing and
why, and what they must do, then the change programme
will fail. According to the finance leaders consulted for
ACCA’s Transformation challenges in finance report, failure
is not caused by poor process and technology, but lack
of communication about the change.

Preparation
Not only should the finance organisation and its
stakeholders be prepared to commit themselves to the
change, but the transformation team must have a tight
plan to manage that change.

Resources
Finance transformers moving to shared services or
outsourcing often underestimate the effort required
for change management. The key is to have sufficient
resources at each transformation phase – from developing
strategy to achieving ‘business as usual’ acceptance.
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Patience
Finance transformation involves
high bursts of energy to effect
a revolution as well as slower,
more evolutionary change.
The process takes much
longer than most leaders
would like, but there are a
few shortcuts. Change for
finance is now a way of
life, not a project.

Organisational
redesign
Often, finance leaders
moving to shared services
and outsourcing models forget
that the totality of the finance
function must be redesigned.
Retained roles change significantly in
the face of new models; it is imperative
to ensure that staff are redeployed,
understand their new roles and are
retrained effectively.

Maintaining middle
management
Retaining the middle layer of finance
management that is critical to the
business’s core processes is key to change
management. Yet all too often, middle
managers’ numbers are aggressively reduced
to justify the business case for shared services and
outsourcing, or they are lost in the shuffle.

Alignment between capabilityand ambition
Often finance leaders overstretch themselves to realise
a vision that is way beyond their ability, or that of their
organisation, to achieve, or involves too much change to
absorb. Being realistic about the organisation’s change
potential is important.

Work within the culture
Those who implement complex, multi-scope, multigeography finance transformation programmes,
particularly in business line-led organisations, will
naturally experience greater change challenges. By
contrast, a single finance process implementation in
an organisation run from the corporate centre may find
that change is relatively easy. The trick is to gauge what
your organisation’s culture will allow.
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need the CEO to beat them
with a stick and get them
back on track.’ Hicks agrees
that the CEO’s support is
critical to underscoring that
participation is not optional.

Fast or slow?
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WHY DO WE NEED TO CHANGE?
‘The single biggest success factor is
having a CFO or a business leader
who can talk about the need for
change. Why do we need to change?
What will it feel like when we change?
What’s going to be different? Painting
that compelling picture of the future,
then ensuring that the broader
leadership team really walk the talk.’

Evolution or revolution? Simon
Newton, FD for partnership
services at UK retailer John
Lewis, puts it nicely: ‘Go as fast
as you can and maybe a little
bit faster than you ought.’
Julie Spillane FCCA, managing
You can’t deliver revolution
director, Accenture Global Services
if money is tight and change
has to be brought about
through small steps and quick
wins, but everyone seems to
agree that a transformation
programme that is too
‘I think you need to go more for the revolution and really get on with it, because
slow, under-resourced or
I think otherwise there’s too much debate, too much confusion, and I think the
lacking a certain aggression
quicker that you move to the new model and people get through that change journey,
will not communicate the
the better. Once people see that change, you do build upon the momentum.’
right message. But whether
the change is fast or slow,
Patrick Hicks, service owner for global finance services, GlaxoSmithKline
Deloitte partner Peter Moller
advises: ‘Respect the culture.’
The nature of the transformation strategy is probably the
spreadsheets to drill down into individual transactions. The
most important business decision. The question of whether
‘real’ accountants are in Eastern Europe or India or Manila.
to go for a captive or to outsource completely is one that
CFOs, says the report, need to ‘shut the door on the past
has no easy answer. In any event, the ‘right’ answer to the
but communicate, invest in new career models and highlight
‘make or buy’ decision will be different from one company
the business imperative’.
to another, and many opt for a hybrid solution.
The right external expert can help bring a fresh pair of
So how do you tell what’s right? Factors to bear in mind
eyes to the problem, but they will need to build relationships
include the vision for the finance function (is it to be a
within the company from scratch. Internal leaders may
‘centre of excellence’, for instance, or a ‘partner to the
already have that connectivity with the business, but may
business’?), the scale of the business (does finance have the
not be in the best position to champion the need for change.
critical mass to make outsourcing economically sensible?)
A true partnership between internal leaders and external
and organisational maturity.
experts is the solution that Hicks says is needed.
Culture is important: Hicks says: ‘We are used to solving
There are many keys to success, and all are needed
our own problems.’ But John Ashworth, global head of
to unlock the value in a transformation programme.
finance transformation at Pearson, thinks the model choice
Commitment, knowing the culture, preparation and
presents an opportunity to ‘kick the culture’. His company
resources, aligning capability and ambition – without all
went down the outsourcing route, creating ‘shock and awe’
of these, change programmes will fail to deliver. Perhaps
as part of the change programme. Does your business have
the most important of all, though, is a clear vision that is
this level of risk appetite?
communicated so that everyone knows what is expected
of them and believes that they can – and should – do it. ■

BRING ON THE REVOLUTION

Seeing differently

Either answer to the risk-appetite question involves
significant cultural change for finance functions that have
control and compliance at their heart. Moving toward an
outsourcing model or even shared services means finance
managers are controlling the environment and not the
processes. They use dashboards to gain an overview, not

Jamie Lyon FCCA is ACCA’s head of corporate sector
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

The ACCA report, Transformation challenges in finance,
is at www.accaglobal.com/smart
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TAKING CONTROL

Having a conscious role in how we think can steer us away from destructive responses,
transform our ability to make decisions and enhance relationships, says Noel Brady

W

ho’s in control: you or your subconscious?
No apologies for introducing this somewhat
profound opening question. It’s a deeply
important question that executives – and
everyone else, for that matter – should ask themselves.
In any 24-hour day, we are really only conscious of a small
percentage of things that we make happen, or that happen
to us. While we are distracted by our thoughts, worries and
daydreams, our mysterious subconscious is controlling most
of what we do and how we react to events – a kind of silent
autopilot, if you like. Our subconscious mind contains our
individual subjective map of reality, and as external events
enter our subconscious through our senses we process our
response largely on auto-pilot, without ever engaging our
high-level conscious mind – the one that uses logic and
critical thinking to make rational decisions (we hope).

The conditioned subconscious
This subconscious map of reality is directly influenced
by our life story, from childhood influences such as
culture, parental and school style and critical life experiences
to social status, political loyalties, key role models and choice
of life partners. Our subconscious is largely conditioned to
think and react to events based on our life experiences and
influences. We continuously develop habits of thinking, feeling
and behaving throughout our lives.
Emotional intelligence as a concept has been
around since Daniel Goleman coined the phrase for
his 1995 book, Emotional Intelligence. One of his key
insights is that our outcomes in life, both positive and
negative, are largely determined by our subconscious.
Goleman identified that emotional responses are held at
a subconscious level and that they are intricately linked
with subconscious habits of thinking and behaving.
Personally, I think the phrase can be misleading:
how can emotions be intelligent? I prefer the concept of
subconscious potential. Our brain has the potential to
be highly effective or ineffective in any given situation or
role depending, to some extent, on our inherited genes
but, to a larger extent, on our life experiences. As an
executive coach I used to focus on helping individuals and
teams perform to their leadership potential by working on
behaviours, but now I focus on helping clients maximise their
leadership potential by changing their habits of thinking
and the ways in which they use their minds.
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Rewire your brain!
We know from recent advances in neuroscience that the
brain has an amazing capability to rewire itself, both
positively and negatively, depending on what happens to us
in life. For example, when a person loses their eyesight, the
part of the brain responsible for processing images gets
reused for processing sound and results in highly sensitive
hearing. We also know that temporarily induced mental
states become more permanent mental traits as the mind
influences the brain’s structure.
Changing long-held limiting habits of thinking around
life, work, leadership and relationships can be hard, but
is achievable. It’s not dissimilar to curing an addiction to
harmful behaviour or drugs. In both cases, the support of
others is often invaluable because change is so hard.
We now know enough about how the brain works to
consciously influence this natural process. The six points
below are condensed from my long experience of working
with executives who successfully achieved lasting change.
1 Make a real decision to change. Take 100% personal
ownership of the outcome. This is probably the most
important step and the one that causes the most
problems. If you want to become an inspirational leader,
for example, it’s important to really know why you want to
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is often introduced to help executives deal with the
stresses and relentless pressures of work. For some,
mindfulness is about finding peaceful time to clear one’s
mind of thoughts and meditate. For me, the practice is
less structured. I endeavour to create an ongoing habit of
being mindful. This is very powerful because it provides
the opportunity to consciously change my old, unhelpful
habits of thinking that get in the way of maximising my
potential as a leader, coach, partner and father. It’s very
simple: mindful leaders make better decisions.
4 Become less self-centric in your thinking. Highperforming teams are essential to business success, but
when working as an executive team coach I invariably find
that dysfunctional team behaviour and poor performance
are caused by self-centric thinking. Leaders should
develop a habit of challenging self-centric thinking
in both themselves and others; be mindful that it is
associated with poor outcomes, unhealthy conflict and
negative emotions.
5 Reflect on your outcomes. This is a crucially important
element of change. Spending some quality time reflecting
on important events is part of the process of rewiring
our brain to create fresh connections and thinking habits.
Humans have evolved to learn from experience, and this is
accelerated and deepened by reflection.
Ask yourself: ‘What happened during an
important event? What worked or didn’t
work well? What insights or learnings
did you get? What would you do
differently next time?’ Make this a habit
and your learning and development will
accelerate rapidly.
6 Persevere. Changing unhelpful habits of thinking takes
time and repetition. We know from neuroscience that
thoughts happen when brain cells, or neurons, transmit
electrical signals between each other via connections
called synapses. The more often the neurons fire, causing
a transfer of information to another neuron, the stronger
the pathway becomes – hence, the creation of new habits
of thinking. The obverse is also true; as thoughts become
less frequent, the neural pathway shrinks.
Use these six points to steer your brain’s development to
gain more conscious control of your mind and improve your
leadership – and your life. ■

▌▌▌CHANGING LONG-HELD LIMITING HABITS OF
THINKING AROUND LIFE, WORK, LEADERSHIP AND
RELATIONSHIPS CAN BE HARD, BUT IS ACHIEVABLE
be so. What are the positive benefits for you, your team
and your business? Are they really worth the time, energy
and personal commitment to continuously push yourself
outside your comfort zone? Contemplate what might be
subconsciously motivating you.
2 Create a personal vision in the area you want to change. A
strong vision helps to overcome challenges and momentto-moment difficulties. It helps us to deliberately focus
on how we want to be, rather than how we are now. In the
area of a key stakeholder relationship, for example, your
vision may be to maximise the strength and quality of the
relationship over the long term. If so, then being right all
the time and getting the decision you want right now may
harm that relationship. Instead of ‘winning’, you might
consciously choose to align with your vision and defer to
the stakeholder in order to strengthen the relationship.
3 Practice awareness. Begin to ask yourself: ‘What do
I think about the process of my thinking right now?’
Engage your conscious mind in the process of thinking.
Or, ask yourself: ‘What is happening right now?’
Unawareness makes you a prisoner of your conditioning,
but past experiences are not necessarily a good guide for
present-moment challenges. The practice of mindfulness

Noel Brady is an executive director with Inside Out, a global
executive coaching firm. He works internationally with
senior executive leaders and leadership teams focusing on
developing lasting performance improvements through the
creation of new and empowering habits of thinking.
noelbrady@insideout.biz
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

www.insideout.biz
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Career boost
What do studies tell us about the battle of the sexes at work, asks talent doctor Rob Yeung.
Plus, how to impress a new client, and how many typos you can get away with on your CV

TALENT DOCTOR: GENDER
Are women and men equally effective in the workplace?
As a research psychologist, I get frustrated with much of
what is written about the subject as it tends to be based
on opinion rather than evidence. So what do studies tell
us about the battle of the sexes at work?
The answer depends on how you define ‘effective’.
Management professor Fred Luthans defines an effective
leader as one who is able to create a team of productive
and satisfied employees. He defines a successful leader
as one who is able to be promoted quickly.
A 2008 study by management professors Margaret
Hopkins and Diana Bilimoria asked hundreds of
employees to rate the effectiveness of their leaders.
The results found that male and female leaders were no
different in their levels of interpersonal competence and
emotional intelligence; they were equally effective.
However, the male leaders tended to be more
successful; they were promoted more frequently and saw
their salaries increase more. Even when female leaders
had equivalent levels of skill, they tended to be rewarded
with fewer promotions and salary increases.
A 2013 experiment by behavioural scientists Michelle
Haynes and Madeline Heilman invited women and men
to work together in small project teams. Afterwards, the
researchers asked the women and men individually to
say who they think did the most work. Typically, men
were more likely to claim credit for having made the
most contribution. In contrast, women were more likely
to share the credit by saying that ‘we’ or ‘my team mate’
had done the work.
Given that most studies suggest that women are no
less effective, this suggests that they often don’t take
credit even when they should. No one likes a braggart,
but women in general may want to seek recognition for
the achievements to which they genuinely contributed.

Understanding the perception gap
Dozens of studies have shown that most people – not
just leaders but all employees – typically have fairly
inaccurate views of their own competence. Some people
massively overestimate themselves; others underestimate
themselves by a similar margin.
A 2014 paper in the Journal of Applied Psychology
reviewing the results of 95 studies collected all over
the world found that men tended to rate themselves as
significantly more effective than women rated themselves.
However, when these men and women were actually rated
by colleagues, the reverse was true: colleagues tended to
find female leaders to be more effective.
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Overall, research suggests that women are as effective
as men in leadership roles – if not slightly better.
However, women tend to underestimate themselves and
shy away from taking credit.
If you’re a manager, you would be wise to take these
differences into account. Just because a woman in your
team doesn’t seem as confident or pushy about her
achievements doesn’t mean she isn’t as good. Failing
to recognise talented individuals – regardless of their
gender – may be robbing you and your organisation of
some of your best future leaders.
Dr Rob Yeung is a psychologist at leadership consulting
firm Talentspace and author of more than 20 career
and management books, including How To Win: The
Argument, the Pitch, the Job, the Race. He also appears
as a business commentator on BBC, CNBC and CNN news
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

www.talentspace.co.uk
@robyeung
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THE PERFECT: NEW CLIENT MEETING
You’ve ironed your best outfit, brushed your hair and
polished your shoes; you’ve got the time, address and
names imprinted inside your eyelids; you
may have even practised your
handshake. You’re ready to meet
your new client.
Or are you? If your client
is a different nationality,
are there any traditions
or cultural nuances you
should be aware of? If
you’re meeting in a
restaurant or bar,
should you drink?
If so, how much?
A lot of
research goes into
making a good first
impression on a new
client, but alongside
being courteous and
flexible, there are a few
steps you can take to
come over well and
start the relationship
off on the right foot.
First, plan and
prepare. You’ll have your own
agenda and targets, but you
need to take into account
your client’s expectations
and needs, so put
yourself in their shoes –
do your research.

SUMMER BREAK

A US study by Robert Half
has found that 39% of
workers won’t use their
allotted summer vacation
days, with 38% saving some
in case they need them later
and 30% for fear of falling
behind with work.
Paul McDonald, Robert
Half’s senior executive
director, says: ‘All work and
no play doesn’t just lead
to burnout, it also erodes
creativity, since stepping
outside of routine frequently
sparks innovation. Fresh
perspective is useful in just
about any profession.’
And it is, after all, a long
stretch till next summer.

TYPO TOLERANCE

It seems that even
employers are becoming
desensitised by the quick,
casual and often mistakeridden communication of
social media. According to
research by Accountemps,
only 17% of employers
say a single mistake would
land a CV in the reject pile
compared with a figure of
40% in 2009.
But this does not mean
jobseekers can relax – 63%
said two mistakes was
enough to consign a CV to
the waste bin.
The study cited real
examples of howlers in
CVs: ‘My last employer fried

Second, set an agenda. This doesn’t need to be
followed too rigidly, but if emailed to the client the day
before it can make a positive initial impression.
On the day there’s every chance the meeting
will go in a completely different
direction, but that’s ok.
Third, be professional. Show
common courtesy, politeness and
consideration. Follow your client’s
lead with alcohol, don’t talk over them
or appear distracted, and turn your
phone to silent.
Fourth, take notes. This can help
make your client feel that what
they are saying is valued and also
help you appear busy if it’s a
boring meeting.
Finally, provide a meeting
summary. This is where your note taking
will prove useful. It ultimately affirms the
agenda and the meeting, sets out the
future path and looks professional.

me for no reason.’ ‘I am
graduating this Maybe.’ And
‘I am looking for my big
brake.’ Oops!

IT’S FLEXI-TIME

Changes to legislation in
the UK that come into force
on 30 June could prompt
a surge in flexi-working
requests from employees.
According to a YouGov
survey commissioned by
HR specialist Croner, 26%
of British workers are likely
to request flexible working
arrangements once the new
law comes into force.
Richard Smith, head of
employment law at Croner,
says: ‘Changes to the

law are not bad news for
employers – they will receive
some flexibility too.
‘The new law replaces
the statutory procedure for
consideration of flexible
working requests with a
duty on employers to deal
with employee requests in a
“reasonable” manner.
‘It does not give
employees the right to
working flexibly but provides
a right to request it.’ ■
This page is compiled and
edited by Neil Johnson
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

www.accacareers.com
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CPD

International strategies

Get verifiable CPD units
by answering questions
on this article at:
www.accaglobal.com/abcpd

In the second article in his series on international business,
Tony Grundy looks at how to develop strategies
With mature Western
economies groaning under
the weight of sluggish
GNP per capita growth and
with their government debt
akin not just to the film
The Hangover but also to
follow-ups The Hangover
Part II and The Hangover
Part III, it would be
foolish not to consider the
opportunities presented by

are possible consultancy
projects in Israel and Russia.
I have already chosen my
office in Dubai – The Four
Points Sheraton (I wish!).
If your board isn’t
thinking about this
dimension yet, then at the
next board meeting, wake
them up! There is a myriad
of options to explore, as I
will now explain.

▲ IN HIS DREAMS…

Downtown Dubai is our author’s preferred locale for his
burgeoning Middle Eastern executive development hub
the ‘other world’, which is
growing fast.
Take my own business
as an example. Five years
ago it was all based in the
UK. In 2014, by contrast,
most of my orders for
executive development
come from Egypt, Europe,
Dubai and the US, and there
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Identifying options
At the most basic level, the
key choices available for
international strategy are:
	which countries to sell to
	which market segments
to sell to
which products to sell
(along with any local
adaptations)

*
*
*

	how to sell them.
*
Obviously, subsequent
choices might arise from
these, such as whether to
make product over there,
and about distribution.
Options for international
development are a bit like
the shape of the branches
of a tree. So we also have
different options branching
out in terms of simple

exporting and setting up
local operations.
The export choice can be
between having your own
sales force, selling through
agents, selling through
distributors or engaging
in a joint venture (JV).
Equally, setting up your
own operations triggers
other options to decide on,
such as whether to have an
organic startup, take part
in a JV or acquire a local

business. A JV can then have
many possible structures –
organisationally and legally.
In addition, there is the
decision to be taken on
location. In some countries
this may not be about
determining where to locate
a single base as, in effect,
there are a multiplicity of
regions; in the case of China
or the US, for instance, the
whole country is too big to
be served realistically from a
single base.
As highlighted in last
month’s article, there is also
the question of timing. For
instance, you might enter
multiple countries/locations
in parallel or through a
dynamic cascade.
There are also phasing
options. You might begin
for instance, with an export
strategy selling from the
UK, then setting up your
own sales force, before
entering a JV or expanding
via acquisition. Even if you
don’t know exactly how
and when it is all going to
pan out – which would be a
well-articulated ‘deliberate
strategy’ – then it is sensible
to have at least worked
out scenarios for some
broad shapes and possible
sequencing of international
development.

Evaluating strategies
Strategy evaluation involves
an assessment of:
the market’s inherent
attractiveness
the potential competitive
position
country attractiveness.
The first two of these were
covered in articles in my
earlier series; country
attractiveness is peculiar

*
*
*
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to international strategy
evaluation and has two
aspects.
The first of these is
that different countries
will have different general
economic growth rates
and market growth rates,
display different levels of
competition, and present
different difficulties of
trading and doing business.
Social, political and
economic stability may be
different too.

such high-level questions
were never addressed. Tesco
did carry out extensive
market research and
piloted prototype sites in
the US, but sometimes the
competitive and cultural
odds can be just too stacked
against you.
Contrast that with the
huge success of Dyson
Appliances in the US.
There was no need for a
manufacturing plant and it
was possible to stick with

of articles on strategy,
distinguishing between the
five criteria of:
strategic attractiveness
financial attractiveness
implementation difficulty
uncertainty and risk
stakeholder acceptability.
Score each individual
cell of the matrix as a 3
(highly attractive), a 2
(medium attractive) or
a 1 (less attractive), and
then add the total up out
of 15. Remember that the

*
*
*
*
*

▌▌▌YOU CAN’T ASSUME THAT OTHER PLAYERS WILL
DO NOTHING. IT IS MUCH LIKE A GAME OF FOOTBALL –
ATTACK AND YOU CAN BE HIT ON THE COUNTER
The second aspect of
country attractiveness is
there may be different levels
of difficulty in competing.
A particular country may
be hostile to your operating
there because you are
from another country (the
‘liability of foreignness’);
conversely, coming from a
certain country may give
you an advantage, such
as British origination in
Anglophile countries.

Case study
When UK retail giant Tesco
decided to move into the
US it thought its superior
grocery retailing skills would
be sufficient to outweigh
both the problem of having
an unknown, new or British
brand, and the difficulty of
not having perfect familiarity
with that market. I wondered
at the time whether Tesco
had looked at the track
record of UK companies
entering the US, and of UK
retailers entering the US
(neither good), and at the
critical success factors in
the US.
With hindsight, the failure
of Tesco’s entirely new
Fresh and Easy brand in
California makes it look like

an existing and established
brand. The US is a natural
home for Dyson, especially
given the quirky appeal
of British inventor James
Dyson. That may be less
true of India – although
the country has a large
and growing middle class,
home-cleaning routines are
different from in Europe and
cultural differences generally
inhibit sales.
Coming back to structure
and international strategies,
a start can be made by
drawing up a matrix of
countries (the ‘where’),
against the ‘how’.
The ‘how’ might be
split – as mentioned above
– into simple export versus
local operations, and
these of course may need
subdividing.
A simple next step is to
score the cells of the matrix
out of 5 – with 5 being very
attractive indeed, 4 very
attractive, 3 average, 2
below average and 1 weak.
Next, take a sample of
the higher scoring strategies
and maybe some 3s you
think you could improve on,
and then run them through
the strategic option grid
explained in my first series

strategic attractiveness
score is based on thinking
about both market and
country attractiveness
– an assumed future
competitive position.

Implementing
strategies
Do not assume a steadystate position in the
marketplace. For instance,
one service company that
entered a central European
country established itself
well but a low-cost rival
opened up with pricing
way lower than the UK
company’s worst fears,
stealing considerable
market share and sales. In
international markets – even
more than domestic ones –
you can’t assume that other
players will do nothing. It is
much like a game of football
– attack and you can be hit
on the counter. Competitors
doing little or nothing may
be just ‘playing dead’.
Attack a rival in its
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home country and it might
even counterattack you in
yours. For instance, when
Dyson started to export to
Europe in earnest around
1997–98, Miele retaliated by
penetrating one of Dyson’s
most valued accounts, John
Lewis, which in around 1999
told me: ‘Miele is our bestselling product.’
In sophisticated and
global markets (especially
in fast-moving consumer
goods) multinationals
will often coordinate
their offensive marketing
strategies across borders –
even staging simultaneous
attacks on a rival.
To finish, there are
two further angles worth
flagging up: the options for
importing, and strategies
for repelling entrants from
other countries.
As some parts of the
world can manufacture
things much more
cheaply than in Western
economies, importation can
be a vehicle for strategy
development based on
this – called ‘comparative
advantage’. This approach
is often facilitated by the
internet, which has truly
shrunk the globe.
Also, as outlined above,
a domestic-only player
can suddenly find itself up
against new competitors
that may be cheaper
and better. Consider, for
example, how many trades
have been revolutionised in
the UK by workers coming
into the country from
Eastern Europe. ■
Dr Tony Grundy is an
independent consultant
and trainer, and lectures at
Henley Business School
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

www.tonygrundy.com
For previous Tony Grundy articles on strategy and
management theories, visit www.accaglobal.com/abcpd
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Power of the slide
The ability to deliver a bulletproof PowerPoint presentation is a vital skill that can help
you on your journey to becoming a great accountant, says David Parmenter
Accountants are often
guilty of underselling their
carefully thought-through
suggestions. Far too
often the accountant will
short-change themselves
by ‘under-cooking’ their
preparation and practice
time before giving a ‘careerlimiting’ presentation.
Here are my rules for
delivering bulletproof
presentations. These were
first published in my book,
The Leading-Edge Manager’s
Guide to Success.

The rules

Rule 1: Attend a
presentation skills course
1 This is a prerequisite to
delivering bulletproof
presentations. The speed
of delivery, voice levels,
use of silence and getting
the audience’s attention
are all techniques
that you need to be
comfortable with.
Rules 2 and 3: Prepare notes
to go with the presentation
2 Always prepare notes for
the audience so that you
do not have to give detail
in the slides.
3 Understand that the
PowerPoint slide is not
meant to be a document;
if you have more than 35
words per slide, you are
creating a report, not a
presentation. Each point
should be relatively cryptic
and be understood only by
those who have attended
your presentation.
Rules 4 to 6:
Presentation planning
4 Only say yes to carrying
out a presentation if you
have the time, resources,
and enthusiasm to do the
job properly.
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5 Create time so that you
can be in a ‘thinking
space’ (eg work at home,
go to the library, etc).
6 Map the subject area
out in a mind map and
then mind dump on
Post-it stickers covering
all the points, diagrams
and pictures you want
to use. Use one sticker
for each point. Then
place your stickers where
they fit best. Using
stickers makes it easy to
reorganise your subject
matter and will lead to a
better presentation.
Rules 7 to 15:
Presentation content
7 At least 10% to 20% of
your slides should be
high-quality photographs,
some of which will not
even require a caption.
8 A picture can replace
many words; for more
on this, read Presentation
Zen by Garr Reynolds
and Slide:ology by
Nancy Duarte.
9 Understand what is
considered good use of
colour, photographs and
the rule of thirds.
10 For main points, do not
use a font size of less
than 30 points. As Duarte
says: ‘Look at the slide
in the slide sorter view at
66% size. If you can read
it on your computer, there
is a good chance your
audience can read it on
the screen.’
11 Limit animation; the
audience needs to be
able to read all the points
on a slide quickly.
12 Use Guy Kawasaki’s
10/20/30 rule. A
sales-pitch PowerPoint
presentation should have

NEXT STEPS
1 Attend a ‘train the trainers’ course.
2 Use these techniques the next time you have to
give a short presentation, setting aside at least
six hours over a week.
3 Send me an email and I will send you a copy of
my chapter on selling change.
4 Read the books featured in this article.
5 Observe how the best presenters in your
organisation deliver and replicate their techniques.

10 slides, last no more
than 20 minutes and
contain no font smaller
than 30-point size.
13 Be aware of being too
clever with your slides.
Creating white space is
all very well, providing the
labels on your diagram
do not have to be small.
14 Never show numbers to
a decimal place or to the

pound if the number is
greater than 10,000. For
example, it is better to
say, ‘nearly £10m’.
15 Never use clipart; it
sends shivers down the
spine of the audience. ■
David Parmenter is a
writer and presenter on
measuring, monitoring and
managing performance
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

www.davidparmenter.com
www.davidparmenter.com/courses
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CPD

Get verifiable CPD units
by answering questions
on this article at:
www.accaglobal.com/abcpd

In May 2014, the
International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB)
issued two amendments
to standards, entitled
Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation (Amendments
to IAS 16 and IAS 38) and
Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations (Amendments
to IFRS 11). At first
sight, these amendments
may not seem to be of
significance; however, to
some entities they will have
a profound effect.
A variety of depreciation
methods are used to allocate
the depreciable amount of
an asset over its useful life.
These methods include the
straight-line method, the
diminishing balance method
and the units of production
method. The method used
is selected on the basis

49

All change
Don’t be fooled; changes to IAS 16, IAS 38 and IFRS 11 will have
a profound effect on some entities, explains Graham Holt

▌▌▌REVENUE MAY BE A MEASUREMENT OF THE
OUTPUT GENERATED BY THE ASSET, BUT DOES NOT
REPRESENT THE WAY IN WHICH AN ITEM OF PPE IS USED
of the expected pattern
of consumption of the
expected future economic
benefits and is applied
consistently, unless there
is a change in the expected
pattern of consumption.
The IASB decided to
amend IAS 16, Property,
Plant and Equipment, to
address issues that had
arisen over the use of a
revenue-based method for
depreciating an asset. This
is a method that is based
on revenues generated in
an accounting period as
a proportion of the total
revenues expected to be
generated over the asset’s
useful economic life.

Clarification
The total revenue takes into
account any anticipated
changes due to price
inflation but the IASB
felt that inflation has no
bearing on the way in which
an asset is consumed.
The amendment came
as a result of a request
to clarify the meaning
of ‘consumption of the
expected future economic
benefits embodied in the
asset’ when deciding on
the amortisation method
to be used for intangible
assets of service concession
arrangements. IAS 16
requires the depreciation
method to reflect the

pattern in which the asset’s
future economic benefits are
expected to be consumed by
the entity.
Revenue may be a
measurement of the output
generated by the asset, but
does not represent the way
in which an item of PPE is
used. Such methods reflect
a pattern of generation of
economic benefits that arise
from the operation of the
business of which an asset
is part, rather than the
pattern of consumption of
an asset’s expected future
economic benefits.
The IASB concluded that
a method of depreciation
that is based on revenue

»
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generated from an activity
that includes the use of an
asset is not appropriate, but
that the diminishing balance
method is an accepted
depreciation method.
This has the capability
of reflecting accelerated
consumption of the future
economic benefits in the
asset. This latter conclusion
regarding the diminishing
balance method was a
clarification due to concerns
raised by Committee
members who questioned
whether the proposed
amendment, given the
influence of a pricing factor,
would limit the ability to
apply a diminishing balance
depreciation method
to manufacturing
equipment.
The original
exposure draft
proposed that there
might be circumstances
in which a revenuebased method gave the
same result as a ‘units-ofproduction’ method. This
statement was thought to
contradict the proposed
amendments and so
was dropped.
The principle in
IAS 38, Intangible
Assets, is that
an amortisation
method should
reflect the pattern
of consumption of
the expected future
economic benefits
and not the pattern
of generation of expected
future economic benefits.
IAS 38 is therefore amended
to introduce a rebuttable
presumption that a
revenue-based amortisation
method for intangible
assets is inappropriate
for the same reasons as
in IAS 16. However, there
are limited circumstances
when this presumption
can be overturned. They
are where the intangible
asset is expressed as a
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measurement of revenue
and where it can be
demonstrated that revenue
and the consumption of the
intangible asset is directly
linked to the revenue
generated from the asset.
Both standards now
contain an explanation that
expected future reductions
in selling prices might be
indicative of an increased
rate of consumption of the
future economic benefits of
that asset. The amendments
are effective for annual
periods beginning on or
after 1 January
2016 with earlier
application
permitted. Full

retrospective application of
the amendments would have
been too onerous for some
entities.

Outstanding issues
In 2011, the IASB issued
IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements,
which introduced several
changes. Principally, there
are now only two types
of joint arrangements,
which are joint ventures

and joint operations.
Further, proportionate
consolidation is no longer
permitted for arrangements
classified as joint ventures,
as equity accounting has
to be applied. Although
the standard deals with
most issues arising out
of the accounting for
joint operations, there
are certain matters that
it does not address. A key
issue is accounting for the
acquisition of an interest
in a joint operation, which
represents a business.
As both IFRS 11 and its
predecessor, IAS 31, Joint
Ventures, did not deal with
the issue, significant
diversity in practice has

occurred.
The
approaches
used in practice
in accounting for
a joint operation,
which constituted
a business, were as
follows:
A IFRS 3, Business
Combinations, approach:
identifiable assets and
liabilities were normally

CPD

Get verifiable CPD units
by answering questions
on this article at:
www.accaglobal.com/abcpd

measured at fair value
and goodwill recognised.
Additionally, transaction
costs were not capitalised
and deferred taxes were
recognised on initial
recognition of assets
and liabilities. The
guidance in IFRS 3 was
not followed where it
was not appropriate; for
example, in this situation
there would not be noncontrolling interests.
B Cost approach: the
total cost of acquiring
the interest in the joint
operation was allocated
to the individual
identifiable assets on
the basis of their relative
fair values. The premium
paid, if any, was allocated
to the identifiable assets
and not recognised as
goodwill. Transaction
costs were capitalised
and deferred taxes were
not recognised as per

the exception in IAS 12,
Income Taxes.
C Hybrid approach:
preparers in this group
applied IFRS 3 and other
IFRSs selectively with
the result that mainly
identifiable assets
and liabilities were
measured at fair
value and goodwill
was recognised.
Transaction costs
were capitalised with
contingent liabilities and
deferred taxes generally
not recognised.
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This diversity has led to
different treatments of
any premium paid on
acquisition, recognition
or non-recognition of any
deferred taxes arising on
acquisition and acquisition
costs being capitalised
or expensed.
As a result of the
above diversity, the IFRS
Interpretations Committee
was asked to clarify whether
the acquirer of such
interests in joint operations
should apply the principles
in IFRS 3 or whether the
acquirer should account
for it as a group of assets.
The committee referred
the matter to the IASB,
suggesting that the most

are not required for the
activities to qualify as a
business. An output should
have the ability to provide
a return in the form of
dividends, lower costs or
other economic benefits to
owners.
The assessment of
whether a set of activities
and assets represent a
business is still extremely
judgmental.
As a result of the
IASB’s deliberations, an
amendment to IFRS 11
has been made. Accounting
for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations
(Amendments to IFRS 11)
requires that the acquirer
of an interest in a joint
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operation and also to the
acquisition of an interest
when a joint operation is
formed. IFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards,
has also been amended
to extend the business
combination exemptions. The
amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016 and
apply prospectively.
For some companies, the
amendment will represent
a significant change to
current practice and will
present a number of
challenges as a result of
having to apply business
combinations accounting,
while others relate to the

▌▌▌FOR SOME, THE AMENDMENT WILL REPRESENT
A SIGNIFICANT CHANGE TO CURRENT PRACTICE AND
WILL PRESENT A NUMBER OF CHALLENGES
appropriate approach was to
apply the relevant principles
for business combinations in
IFRS 3 and other IFRSs.

Defining a business
One of the key judgments
is whether the activities of
the joint operation, or the
set of activities and assets
contributed to the joint
operation on its formation,
represent a business as
defined by IFRS 3. IFRS 3
defines a business as ‘an
integrated set of activities
and assets that is capable
of being conducted and
managed for the purpose
of providing a return in the
form of dividends, lower
costs or other economic
benefits directly to investors
or other owners, members
or participants’.
Further guidance explains
that a business is a series
of inputs and processes
applied to those inputs that
have the ability to create
outputs. However, outputs

operation which constitutes
a business, as defined
in IFRS 3, is required to
apply all of the principles
in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs
with the exception of those
principles that conflict with
the guidance in IFRS 11.
As a result, a joint operator
that has acquired such an
interest has to:
measure most identifiable
assets and liabilities at
fair value
expense acquisitionrelated costs (other
than debt or equity
issuance costs)
recognise deferred taxes
recognise any goodwill or
bargain purchase gain
perform impairment tests
for the cash-generating
units to which goodwill
has been allocated
disclose information
required relevant for
business combinations.
The amendments apply
to the acquisition of an
interest in an existing joint

*
*
*
*
*
*

nature of the proposed
amendment itself. For
example, joint arrangements
are common in the
mining and metals sector;
therefore any changes in
the accounting can have
wide-ranging implications.
Some key implications
for those companies are
the increased time, cost
and effort needed to
determine fair values for the
identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed.
This in turn will lead to
changes in the profiles of
the financial statements and
the need for more detailed
record keeping. ■
Graham Holt is director of
professional studies at the
accounting, finance and
economics department at
Manchester Metropolitan
University Business School
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

www.ifrs.org
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Technical update
Glenn Collins, ACCA UK’s head of technical advisory, provides a monthly
round-up of the latest developments in financial reporting, audit, tax and law

AUDIT
AUDITING DISCLOSURES

The International Auditing
and Assurance Standards
Board (IAASB) has
issued IAASB Proposes
Enhancements to Auditing
Standards Focused on
Financial Statement
Disclosures. It is open
for comment until 11
September and its
broad aim is to clarify
expectations of auditors
when auditing financial
statement disclosures. To
achieve this, new guidance
is included in the exposure
draft. The IAASB states
that ‘one of the key areas
addressed... is additional
guidance to help establish
an appropriate focus by
the auditor on disclosures
and encourage earlier
auditor attention on them
during the audit process,
including disclosures
where the information
is not derived from the
accounting system.’
For more information visit
http://tinyurl.com/iaasb-ed

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) has issued an
invitation to comment on the
International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board
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(IAASB) exposure draft, ISA
720 (Revised): The Auditor’s
Responsibilities Relating to
Other Information. The FRC
states that its ‘paper seeks
to describe and distinguish
the proposed changes
that the FRC has already
incorporated into ISA (UK
and Ireland) 720 Section
A (Revised October 2012)
and the proposed changes
that would be required to
be made to ISA (UK and
Ireland) 720 Section A, if
the revised ISA were to be
adopted for application in
the UK and Ireland.’ The
FRC encourages users to
send comments to the
IAASB before its deadline
for comments of 18 July
2014 (see June issue of
Accounting and Business).
You can see the FRC papers
at http://tinyurl.com/isa720

REPORTING
CHARITIES SORP

The Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) approved the
SORP for the new Financial
Reporting Standard (FRS 102)
and the SORP for Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller
Entities (FRSSE).
You can read about the
SORPs on page 60 and
access the SORPs and
other materials at www.
accaglobal.com/advisory

SRA ACCOUNTS RULES

Thank you for sending your
comments on the proposal
by the Solicitors Regulation
Authority to withdraw the
requirement for solicitors
holding client monies to
submit accountants’ reports.
The very short consultation

closed on 18 June and you
can find more, including
ACCA’s comments to the
SRA, at www.accaglobal.
com/advisory

DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION

The International Accounting
Standards Board has issued
amendments to IAS 16,
Property, Plant and Equipment
and IAS 38, Intangible
Assets. The amendments are
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with early
application permitted. It has
stated that the principle for
the basis of depreciation and
amortisation is the expected
pattern of consumption of
the future economic benefits
of an asset and has clarified
that the use of ‘revenuebased methods to calculate
the depreciation of an asset
is not appropriate because
revenue generated by an
activity that includes the
use of an asset generally
reflects factors other than
the consumption of the
economic benefits embodied
in the asset.’

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB)
has issued IFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. It applies to an
annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1
January 2017, but earlier
application is permitted.
However, an entity that
chooses to apply IFRS
15 earlier than 1 January
2017 should disclose this
fact in its relevant financial
statements. This is a jointly
issued converged standard

with the US Financial
Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) and the aim is that
it ‘will improve the financial
reporting of revenue and
improve comparability of
the top line in financial
statements globally’.
The boards state that the
‘core principle of the new
standard is for companies
to recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of goods
or services to customers
in amounts that reflect
the consideration (that
is, payment) to which the
company expects to be
entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The
new standard will also result
in enhanced disclosures
about revenue, provide
guidance for transactions
that were not previously
addressed comprehensively
(for example, service
revenue and contract
modifications) and improve
guidance for multipleelement arrangements.’
The core recognition
principle is achieved by a
five-step model framework:
identify the contract(s)
with a customer
identify the performance
obligations in the
contract
determine the transaction
price
allocate the transaction
price to the performance
obligations in the
contract
recognise revenue when
(or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

*
*
*
*
*

COMPANIES HOUSE

The Companies House
website will move to GOV.UK
later this year. This includes
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services such as WebFiling,
WebCheck and Companies
House Direct.

XBRL

Good news for those
considering early adoption
of new UK GAAP. The
Financial Reporting
Council has issued a
consultation on XBRL
taxonomies for FRS 101,
FRS 102 and full European
Union-adopted International
Financial Reporting
Standards. The consultation
is open until 8 July and
can be found at
http://tinyurl.com/frc-xbrl

COLLEGES REPORTING

Skills Funding Agency
financial management: how
to prepare colleges’ annual
financial statements provides
direction to colleges and
auditors in preparing
financial statements. It is
effective for all colleges’
financial statements for
periods ending on or
after 31 July 2014. www.
accaglobal.com/advisory

CODE OF ETHICS
The International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants has issued an exposure
draft, Proposed Changes to Certain Provisions of the Code Addressing Non-assurance
Services for Audit Clients, and invites comment by 18 August.
The board states that the ‘proposed changes aim to enhance the independence
provisions in the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) by:
providing additional guidance and clarification regarding what constitutes
management responsibility, including enhanced guidance regarding how the
auditor can better satisfy itself that client management will make all judgments
and decisions that are the responsibility of management, when the auditor provides
non-assurance services to an audit client
providing better guidance and clarification on the concept of ‘routine or mechanical’
services relating to the preparation of accounting records and financial statements
for non-public interest entity audit clients
removing the provision that permits an audit firm to provide certain bookkeeping
and taxation services to public interest entity audit clients in emergency situations.
For example, it is proposed that the emergency exception provisions related to
bookkeeping and taxation services are withdrawn, ‘based on the following conclusions:
A situation in which an emergency provision should be allowable should be so rare
and extraordinary that it should not be addressed by the Code, nor should the
determination to use the provision be made by the auditor and the client.
Removing the emergency provisions would strengthen the Code by removing the
potential for misuse of the provisions due to subjective terms such as ‘emergency’
and ‘unusual situations’ included in the extant guidance.’
The draft is at http://tinyurl.com/iesba-ethics

*

ACADEMIES REPORTING

Academies Accounts Direction
2013 to 2014 is a reference
pack for academy trusts to
use when preparing their
annual reports and financial
statements for accounting
periods ending on 31 August
2014. It also supports
auditors with their audit of
the financial statements. It
has been updated and the
main changes include:
additional information
on the content of the
auditor’s management
letter
updated guidance to
support the independent
review of regularity
removal of references
to the ‘external auditor’;
these have been
replaced with ‘reporting
accountant’
bringing forward of the
date by which trusts must

*
*
*

*

*

*
*
*

*

publish accounts on their
website from 31 May to
31 January
guidance about the
treatment of fixed
assets funded from
unrestricted funds

highlighting of disclosure
* requirements
set out in

*

the model accounts
re-ordered and updated
sections of the trustees’
report to reflect the
withdrawal of the

business review and
its replacement with a
strategic report
It is also important that the
recent letter to academy
trust accounting officers
highlighting key

»
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risks, including fraud and
transactions with connected
parties, is also considered.
More at www.accaglobal.
com/advisory

TAX
NOTICE AND GUIDANCE
UPDATES

TRAVEL COSTS
The Samadian case outlines the key considerations
when considering what relief is available for travel
and when travel to work is not travel to work. The
tribunal provided guidance to support its decision
and to provide advice going forward, which takes the
form of four main points:
travel expenses for journeys between places of
business for purely business purposes are treated
as deductible
travel expenses for journeys between a location
which is not a place of business and a location
which is a place of business are not deductible
travel expenses for journeys between home (even
where the home is used as a place of business) and
places of business are treated as non-deductible
(other than in very exceptional circumstances,
such as if Dr Samadian were at a private hospital
preparing to see a patient, realised that he had
left notes on the patient in his office at home and
made a special trip to collect them, immediately
returning to the hospital to see the patient)
travel expenses are treated as deductible in relation
to itinerant work (such as Dr Samadian’s home
visits to patients).
Judgment will need to be made on a journey-byjourney basis. This means that it is vital to keep robust
records of all business journeys undertaken. You can
find out more, including a summary of the case and
the latest views, at www.accaglobal.com/advisory

*
*
*

*
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Revenue & Customs Brief
22/14: VAT: CJEU judgment
regarding deduction of
VAT on pension fund
management costs (PPG
Holdings BV) highlights
that ‘HMRC are now further
reviewing the VAT treatment
of pension scheme
administration and fund
management services’ and
it is reviewing the guidance
outlined in Brief 06/14 (see
March issue, Accounting and
Business). It has also stated
that ‘further guidance will
be issued in the autumn
on how both judgments
are to be implemented
(including a transitional
period in which to make
any changes).’ HMRC
suggests that ‘businesses
may, if they wish, continue
to use the transitional
arrangements outlined in the
06/14 Brief’ and that claims
can be submitted.
Revenue & Customs
Brief 21/14: Zerorating of the dispensing
of drugs prescribed by
physiotherapists and
podiatrists highlights
changes in UK VAT
law from 21 May that
allows the zero-rating
of dispensing of
drugs prescribed
by physiotherapists
and podiatrists.
Notice 235: Outward
processing relief
replaces the February
2014 notice of the same
name. The notice has been
updated with clarification
of the use of the valueadded method of duty
calculation for nonEuropean Union goods.

Notice 221: Inward
processing relief replaces
the February 2014 notice of
the same name. The notice
has been updated in a
number of areas.
Notice 183: Repayment
of excise duty on heavy
oil used by growers of
horticultural produce
replaces the October 2009
notice of the same name.
The notice has been updated
for penalties legislation.

VAT PLACE OF SUPPLY
The place of supply for
digital services and VAT
MOSS guidance has been
updated ahead of its 1
January implementation.
See http://tinyurl.com/
hmrc-moss

AGENCY WORKERS

HMRC has issued guidance
on the status of workers
supplied via intermediaries
called Agency workers:
changes to treatment of
workers supplied through UK
based agencies, employment
businesses or other
intermediaries.
The guidance should be
considered by
those involved directly
or indirectly in the
provision of workers to
end clients
end-user businesses
provided with workers
through agencies or
intermediaries
temporary or other
workers supplied through
agencies, employment
businesses or other
intermediaries.
HMRC states that the new
rules, which applied from 6
April 2014, ‘affect workers
who have previously been
provided to end clients
through an agency, to
work on a self-employed
basis. The changes
apply where:
a worker personally
provides their services;
this prevents the use of

*
*
*

*
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a standard substitution
clause to avoid the
agency legislation
there is a contract
between an end client (or
someone connected with
them) and any third party
(ie the agency), and
as a result of that
contract the services
of the worker are
provided, or the client
pays for the services to
be provided.
The changes to the agency
legislation do not apply if
the manner in which the
services are provided
means that the worker
is not, subject to (or to
a right of) supervision,
direction or control by
any person or the monies
the worker receives for
providing their services
is already treated as
employment income
for income tax/NIC
purposes.
You can see more in the
June issue of Accounting and
Business and also at www.
accaglobal.com/advisory

*
*

*

PAYE PENALTIES

In September HMRC will
send a penalty notice to
any employers who by
that time have not filed
their outstanding 2013
to 2014 PAYE returns.
They have stated that they
will not issue any other
interim ‘penalty notices for
outstanding 2013 to 2014
returns which would have
been issued in January
2015 and May 2015’, but
they will finalise any penalty
due upon receipt of the late
filed return.

BENEFITS IN KIND

HMRC is consulting on four
areas during the summer.
These were highlighted in
the Budget and are:
Abolishing the £8,500
threshold.
The government has
stated that it ‘believes

*

that this threshold adds
unnecessary complexity
to the tax system and
is consulting on how to
mitigate the effects of
abolition on vulnerable
groups of employees’.
Introducing a statutory
exemption for trivial
benefits in kind.
The government has
stated that it ‘believes
that a clear and simple
statutory exemption will
make administering such
benefits substantially
easier for employers. The
government will therefore
consult on the design of
such an exemption.’
Replacing the current
system of dispensations
for reporting non-taxable
expenses with a general
business expenses
exemption.
The government has stated
that it ‘believes that an
exemption would be simpler,
more transparent, consistent
and easier to use for
employers than the current
system. This consultation
will cover the design features
of such an exemption and
its administration.’
Introducing a system of
voluntary payrolling for
benefits in kind.
The government has
stated that it ‘believes that
payrolling benefits in kind
instead of submitting forms
P11D can offer substantial
administrative savings
for some employers and
wishes to create a system
to empower employers to
do so if they feel it to be
beneficial. The government
will consult on the design
and scope of a payrolling
model and is interested to
hear also from employers
who are already doing this
on an informal basis, and
what “payrolling” means
to them.’
You can find more at
www.accaglobal.com/
advisory

*

*

*

APPEAL PROVISIONS

SI 2014 no 1264: The
Revenue and Customs
(Amendment of Appeals
Provisions for Out of Time
Reviews) Order 2014
amends the legislation
‘so that where the
commissioners decide not
to undertake a review out
of time, an appeal may
only be brought against
the relevant decision if the
tribunal gives permission to
do so’. http://tinyurl.com/
hmrc-oot

LAW
PROTECTING IP
INTERNATIONALLY

You can find the latest
guidance on protecting
intellectual property outside
the UK at http://tinyurl.
com/ipuk-int

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Charity Commission
has issued revised public
guidance on conflicts of
interest for charity trustees.
The Commission has
highlighted that there ‘is
a new emphasis on the
seriousness of the issue
and the consequences
that can follow from
mishandling conflicts of
interest. For the first time
the Commission’s guidance
expressly explains that
potential conflicts of interest
may need to be considered
as a “pre-appointment”
issue, placing the emphasis
on preventing conflicts
from arising. There is also
an increased emphasis
on the responsibility of
individual trustees to
identify and declare any
conflicts of interest.
Other key features of the
new guidance include:
a simple, three-step
approach to dealing with
conflicts of interest
a revised working
definition of conflicts
of interest

*
*
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a number of practical
* examples
to illustrate
the principles in the
guidance’
In the section Legal
underpinning – Conflicts of
interest: a guide for charity
trustees, the case of
Mountstar (PTC) Limited
v The Charity Commission
for England and Wales
2013 is explored. It is
used to illustrate the
overarching principle that
trustees act solely in the
interests of the charity
and take their decisions
solely in the interests of
furthering the charitable
purposes. You can find
the guidance at www.
accaglobal.com/advisory

SARS – SEEKING
CONSENT

A quick reminder on
seeking consent as allowed
under the Proceeds of Crime
Act 2002. The act ‘allows
reporters a defence against
a money-laundering offence
by seeking the consent of
the NCA [National Crime
Agency] to undertake an
activity which the reporter
suspects may constitute
one of the three money
laundering offences’. The
two important periods are:
The ‘notice period’ (seven
working days)
The ‘moratorium period’
(31 calendar days).
Following a consent
request, consent decisions
must be made within seven
working days from the day
after receipt of the consent
request (excluding Bank
Holidays and weekends).
If nothing is heard within
that time, the reporter
may proceed with the
specified transaction
or activity and will have
a defence against any
potential money-laundering
offences relating to that
activity. However, and as the
guidance states, ‘if consent
is refused within

*
*

»
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PATENT BOX
It has been with us since April 2013 and allows companies to apply a lower rate
of corporation tax to profits earned from its patents. To summarise, relief is being
phased in over a four-year period and by April 2017 corporation tax to be applied
to profits earned from patents will be 10%. Patents have a natural link to R&D and
incentivise companies to continue to invest.
The Intellectual Property Office highlights that ‘all granted UK and European
patents qualify for Patent Box regardless of when they were granted, as do patents
from the following countries in the European Economic Area: Austria, Estonia,
Hungary, Romania, Bulgaria, Finland, Poland, Slovakia, Czech Republic, Germany,
Portugal, Sweden, Denmark. You cannot qualify for Patent Box on the basis of a
patent application – the patent must have been granted.’
The Intellectual Property Office also highlights that applying for a patent takes
time and that it ‘will not normally be possible to get a patent granted more quickly
solely for the reason that you wish to take advantage of Patent Box. However, if a
delay in grant would have a significant cashflow impact on your company because
of its effect on eligibility for the Patent Box this would usually be considered an
acceptable reason for accelerating grant of your patent. A significant impact could,
for example, be one which might affect solvency of your company or its ability
to obtain financing or to continue investment or research programmes.’ More at
www.accaglobal.com/advisory
It is clear that many small and medium-sized companies can often ignore this
benefit as they see the regime as being difficult and time consuming. ACCA has
worked with the Intellectual Property Office on a number of areas, including IP
Equip – a tool that helps you identify different intellectual property (IP) assets. Once
complete, you have access to a library of material, including the following:

Checklist and consultancy tools
checklist
* Patents
Online IP healthcheck
* Free IP app – basic IP on the move
* Confidentiality agreements
*

Business support, IP and legal

Department for Business, Innovation
* and
Skills
Chartered Institute of Patent
* Attorneys
Technology Association
* Intellect
Business support for SMEs
* Patent libraries – help with all IP
* Business & IP Centre – London
* IPO helpline
*

Guides

basic facts
* Patents:
Before applying for a UK patent
* Applying for a UK patent
* Patent protection abroad
* Patent Box
* Licensing intellectual property
* IPO Opinions Service
* Resolving IP disputes
* R&D tax relief
*

Additional support

videos on patents
* Short
Short videos on IP rights abroad
*
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▼ OPEN DOOR

Patents from EEA countries
including Slovakia qualify
for Patent Box

the seven working days,
law enforcement has a
further 31 calendar days
(the ‘moratorium period’) –
from the day of refusal – to
further the investigation into
the reported matter and take
further action eg restrain or
seize funds.’
The guidance also
reminds reporters that
‘regardless of the method of
disclosure, reporters should
ensure they:
tick the ‘Consent
Required’ option
tick the option to
indicate whether they are
disclosing through POCA
or the Terrorism Act 2000
(TACT)
identify as clearly as
possible the suspected
benefit from criminal
conduct (the ‘criminal
property’) including,
where possible, the
amount of benefit
identify the reason(s) for
suspecting that property
is criminal property
identify the proposed
prohibited act/s they
seek to undertake
involving the criminal
property
identify the other party/
parties involved in
dealing with the criminal
property including
their dates of birth
and addresses where
appropriate (such
information should
be held routinely by
reporters in the regulated
sector to comply with
the requirements of
the Money Laundering
Regulations.’
You can find out more
at www.accaglobal.com/
advisory

*
*
*

*
*
*

SANCTIONS

The Treasury guidance
relating to current
financial sanctions can be
found at
http://tinyurl.com/uksanctions ■

58

TECHNICAL | UK GAAP

Knock-on effect
ACCA’s Richard Martin looks at how the EU accounting directive and new UK GAAP will
interact and investigates the effect the two might have on the future of the FRSSE
Previous articles here and
elsewhere have pointed out
the development of the new
UK GAAP of FRS 100 to 103
and what changes are likely
as a result. Last month
the article ‘Rules with
wriggle room’ looked at the
implications of the new EU
accounting directive. There
are interactions between the
two that are worth exploring.

we will be familiar, with the
exception of the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller
Entities (FRSSE) which
will continue essentially
unchanged.

It is worth noting that
there are still amendments
to come through during this
year to hedge accounting
in particular, which is
making the transition

requirements for balance
sheets and P&L accounts
will continue for them, the
EU will specify the maximum
that can be asked for in
terms of note disclosures;

▌▌▌SMALL COMPANIES MAKE UP THE OTHER MAJOR
GROUP AFFECTED BY THE DIRECTIVE AND THERE WILL
BE EVEN MORE OF THEM THAN PREVIOUSLY

New UK GAAP
The new UK GAAP consists
of four new standards. FRS
100 sets out the overall
framework; FRS 101 sets
out disclosure reductions
available to group
companies otherwise using
full International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS);
FRS 102 is the new main
standard; and FRS 103 is for
insurance companies. These
standards will replace all the
existing Financial Reporting
Standards and Statements
of Standard Accounting
Practice (SSAPs) with which

ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS

FRS 102 is available to all,
but compulsory for mediumsized and large companies
after 1 January 2015. This
is a new standard much
shorter than all the existing
UK standards it replaces
and is based primarily on
the international IFRS for
SMEs. It is a new, briefer
text, but will also bring
in some new disclosures
and some new accounting
treatments – for example, in
financial instruments, hedge
accounting and business
combinations.

more difficult. There are
also new Statements of
Recommended Practice
(SORPs) that are being
finalised to go with FRS
102. All of these should
be finalised before the
end of 2014 ready for
implementation in 2015.

EU accounting directive
The new directive is far
reaching and provides the
legal framework for company
and consolidated accounts in
the European Union (EU). It
will have an important effect
on large mining, oil and gas
companies with the ‘countryby-country reporting’ of
payments to governments.
These will be in separate
reports and not part of the
audited financial statements.
Small companies make
up the other major group
affected by the directive and
there will be even more of
them than previously – the
UK government is likely to
use the maximum threshold
allowed which will increase
the critical turnover limit to
about £10m from £6.5m.
The other principal
change will be a reduction in
the disclosure requirements
in small company
accounts. While the format

whether by way of the law or
accounting standards, which
is the so-called maximum
harmonisation approach.
(See box, right.)
This means that many
other disclosures currently
in the FRSSE will have to be
removed – for example, those
analysing expenses such as
interest, staff costs or tax,
analyses of share capital and
movements on reserves.
This has led to the
Financial Reporting Council
(FRC) reconsidering the
future of the FRSSE as
a whole. It is likely to
propose that in future small
companies will follow a
version of FRS 102 which
would include all of the
accounting treatments
but reflect the reduced
disclosure requirements.
While the new UK GAAP
takes effect from 2015,
these changes for small
companies must be effective
a year later in 2016. So the
choice for small companies
to continue with the FRSSE
may not be for all that long.

Micro companies
Within small companies
there is a new category of
micro companies. These are
companies which meet two
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NOTE DISCLOSURES
Note disclosures for small companies must be
limited to:
Accounting policies
Effects of revaluation and fair values
Prior-year adjustments
Commitments and contingencies
Security given over assets
Liabilities due in more than five years
Loans to directors
Exceptional items in profit for the year
Employee numbers.

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

The UK will probably also require:
Movements on fixed assets
The name of the immediate parent preparing
consolidated accounts
Off balance sheet arrangements
Post balance sheet events
Related party transactions.

out of three of the following
criteria: a turnover of less
than £632,000; assets of
less than £316,000; and
10 employees.
For these companies
the formats are reduced
and essentially no note
disclosures are required.
This is already available.
It derives from an earlier
amendment to the directives
and in the UK can be used
for accounting periods
ending September 2013. A
revised version of the FRSSE
has already been produced;
however, it appears that not
many of the thousands of
eligible companies have yet
made the change. When the
FRSSE is replaced, an even
‘lighter’ version of FRS 102
for micros may be prepared.

Interaction
In all of these disclosure
reductions for small and
micro companies, what
is the impact on the true
and fair view requirement
in the Companies Act and
UK accounting standards?
For small companies that
remains the overriding
requirement. Directors have
to provide the information
required by the law and
standards, but if more

disclosures are needed
to meet that true and fair
requirement then they must
provide them.
The position is different
for directors of micros. If
the reduced requirements
are complied with, then
the law states the accounts
‘are presumed to give the
true and fair view’ with no
overriding requirement.
If your company is
currently treated as medium
sized but with the coming
increase in thresholds
would become small, then
it appears that you will
have to apply FRS 102 for
your 2015 accounts but will
probably be switched to the
‘FRS 102 lite’ regime a year
later. It is possible that FRC
may delay the application
of FRS 102 for this group.
At worst this would mean
for one year making extra
disclosures and providing a
cashflow statement.
If your company is small,
using full UK standards and
you are pondering whether
to switch in 2015 to FRS
102 or the FRSSE, then the
short shelf life of the latter
may be an influencing factor.
Richard Martin is ACCA’s
head of corporate reporting

*
*
*
*
*

POSSIBLE TIMETABLE
July 2014

Government consultation
on changes to company
law

Before end of 2014

Last amendments to
FRS 102 for hedge
accounting finalised
SORPs based on FRS
102 available
Financial Reporting
Council consultation on
replacement of FRSSE

January 2015

Medium-sized and large
companies must apply
FRS 102

July 2015

New company law
published

January 2016

Effective date for new
company law
Likely replacement of
FRSSE with FRS 102
versions for micros

FOR MORE INFORMATION:

‘Rules with wriggle room’, see
www.accaglobal.com/ab91
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CPD

All change please

Get verifiable CPD units
by answering questions
on this article at:
www.accaglobal.com/abcpd

The Charity Commission’s Nigel Davies introduces the new
framework for charity accounting and reporting
UK GAAP is changing
with effect for accounting
periods beginning
on or after 1 January
2015. This new GAAP
framework brings change
to charity accounting in
the UK and Ireland. The
existing Statement of
Recommended Accounting
Practice: Accounting and
reporting by charities
(popularly known as
SORP 2005) will be
superseded by a new
framework of two SORPs.

What is new GAAP?
As far as charities are
concerned, new GAAP
is comprised of three
standards:
Financial Reporting
Standard for Smaller
Entities 2015 (FRSSE) – a
UK Companies Act-based
standard retaining the
terminology and many
of the small company
accounting treatments of
existing GAAP.
FRS 100, Application
of Financial Reporting
Requirements sets out
the general framework
and establishes the
status of SORPs.
FRS 102, the financial
reporting standard
applicable in the UK and
Ireland, is an amalgam
of accounting treatments
available under existing
GAAP and the IFRS for
SMEs developed by the
International Accounting
Standards Board.
The role of SORPs is to
provide application guidance
to help practitioners prepare
accounts under GAAP, so
when GAAP changes, a new
SORP is required.

*

*

*
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Why two new SORPs?
A draft version of a new
charities’ SORP was issued
for consultation from
July to November 2013.
The consultation process
culminated in 179 written
responses and more than
1,600 people participated in
26 consultation events held
across the UK and Ireland.
A significant minority
of charities already use
the FRSSE and 88% of
respondents supported a
solution that supported
both FRSSE and FRS 102.
However, due to a new
accounting directive from
the European Union, the
longer-term future of the
FRSSE is very uncertain. A
number of respondents also

▌▌▌THE CONSULTATION PROCESS CULMINATED IN 179
WRITTEN RESPONSES AND MORE THAN 1,600 PEOPLE
PARTICIPATED IN 26 CONSULTATION EVENTS
advocated separating out the
two standards with separate
SORPs, citing dissimilarities
in terminology, definitions
and accounting treatments.
Therefore, to address these
concerns, there are two new
SORPs. While any charity
can follow the FRS 102
SORP, only those charities
that fulfil two of three
eligibility criteria may adopt
the FRSSE SORP. In order
to use the FRSSE, charities
must meet two out of three
of the following criteria: an
annual gross income of less
than £6.5m; total assets
of less than £3.26m; or
fewer than 50 employees.
Charities now face a very
clear choice for accounting

periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015.
In writing the new
SORPs, care has been taken
to respond to feedback
from the charity sector,
particularly:
Think small first so the
text clearly distinguishes
requirements that apply
to all charities from only
those that apply to larger
charities. Larger charities
are those required to
have an audit under
charity law.
A clear differentiation
between what ‘must’ be
done to comply with the
SORP, what ‘should’ be
done as a matter of good
practice and what ‘may’

*

*
*
*

*

*

be done by way of extra
illustration or an option.
Clearly distinguishing
between requirements
imposed by the SORP
from the requirements of
accounting standards.
More explanatory text
to help smaller charities
understand what is
required.
Avoiding unnecessary
changes and so as far as
possible terminology has
been kept consistent with
that currently used rather
than switching over to
new GAAP terminology.
Retention of the
columnar approach to the
Statement of Financial
Activities (SoFA) but
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with simpler clearer
headings for income and
expenditure.

HOW HAS THE SoFA CHANGED?
2005 SORP (SoFA extract)

FRSSE SORP (SoFA
extract)

FRS 102 SORP (SoFA
extract)

Voluntary income

Donations and legacies

Donations and legacies

Activities for generating
funds

Other trading activities

Other trading activities

Investment income

Income from investments

Income from investments

Incoming resources from
charitable activities

Income from charitable
activities

Income from charitable
activities

Other incoming resources

Other income

Other income

Total incoming resources

Total income and
endowments

Total income and
endowments

Costs of generating
voluntary income
Fundraising trading: cost of
goods sold and other costs

Expenditure on raising
funds

Expenditure on raising
funds

Investment management
costs
Resources expended on
charitable activities

Expenditure on charitable
activities

Expenditure on charitable
activities

Other expenditure

Other expenditure

Governance costs
Other resources expended

Net gains/(losses) on
investments
Net incoming/outgoing
resources before transfers

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure)

Gross transfers between
funds

Transfers between funds

Transfers between funds

Gains on revaluation of
fixed assets for charity’s
own use

Gains/(losses) on
revaluation of fixed assets

Gains/(losses) on
revaluation of fixed assets

Gains/losses on
investment assets

Gains/(losses) on
investment assets

Actuarial gains/losses on
defined benefit pension
schemes

Actuarial gains/(losses)
on defined benefit pension
schemes

Net movement in funds

The table opposite compares
line headings from SORP
2005 with their respective
location in the SoFA
under the new SORPs. For
clarity only an extract of
each SoFA is shown. An
important change required
by accounting standards
that applies in future is
a requirement to give
comparatives for each
column in the SoFA either
on the face of the SoFA or in
the notes to the accounts.

How will preparing
accounts under the
FRS 102 SORP differ
from SORP 2005?
There are key differences
in the areas of accounting
policies and disclosure.
Reference must be made to
the SORP as the following
highlights are not exhaustive.
With respect to
accounting policies the main
changes are:
The income recognition
criterion of ‘virtually
certain’ is replaced by
‘probable’.
New guidance on the
recognition of income
from legacies using a
portfolio approach.
Donated goods for
resale or distribution are
recognised on receipt
unless impractical and/
or the costs outweigh
the benefits.
New guidance on
recognising income
under the UK retail
gift aid scheme on an
estimated basis.
New guidance on the
identification of onerous
contracts.
Recognition of a liability
for paid annual leave and
sick leave.
The differentiation

*
*
*

*
Actuarial gains/(losses)
on defined benefit pension
schemes
Other gains/(losses)

Net movement in funds

How has the SoFA
changed?

Net movement in funds

*
*
*

»
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between ‘basic’ and
‘other’ financial
instruments.
New guidance on the
application of a total
return approach to
investments (England and
Wales only).
New class of social
investments and mixedmotive investments.
Incorporated charities
are prohibited from being
treated as branches.
New guidance on the
use of and criteria for
merger accounting.
Equity method now used
for consolidating joint
venture entities.
A definition of de facto
trustees added.
A revised definition of
related parties.
The main additional
disclosure requirements are:
Any material uncertainties
of which the trustees are
aware in making their
going concern assessment
must be disclosed.
Detailed disclosures for
income from government
grants.
Additional disclosures of
related party transactions
and the employee
benefits received by key
management personnel.
The disclosure of the
number of staff paid
£60,000 or more in
bands is extended to all
charities that submit
accruals accounts.
Extensive disclosures
to do with financial
instruments.
Summary analysis
of heritage asset
transactions.
Extensive disclosure
of nature of
concessionary loans.
New disclosures where
the charity is a subsidiary
of another entity.
New merger disclosures.
Additional disclosures
for associates and joint
ventures.

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

*
*
*
*
*
*
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How different is the
FRSSE SORP?
The FRSSE sits within a
framework of existing GAAP
which is being withdrawn.
To allow for this, FRSSE
2015 provides that where
an entity is facing an item
or transaction of a kind
for which it has no existing
accounting policy (termed
‘accepted practice’) it
should refer to FRS 102
to identify the ‘current
practice’ to follow.
The FRSSE SORP requires
if the FRSSE specifies a
solution for specific items
or transactions that the
FRSSE must be followed,
otherwise for charity (public
benefit entity) specific items
or transactions ‘current

practice’ (new GAAP) must
be adopted. The FRSSE
SORP also identifies when
charities can retain their
existing accounting policy
for non-charity specific
items or transactions,
provided this is consistent
with ‘accepted practice’
(existing GAAP).
The main differences
between the FRSSE and FRS
102 SORPs are:
The opportunity to retain
certain accounting policies
for non-charity specific
items or transactions.
The Statement of Cash
Flows is voluntary.
Investment gains/
(losses) do not count
towards the net income/
(expenditure) figure.

*

CPD

Get verifiable CPD units
by answering questions
on this article at:
www.accaglobal.com/abcpd

The recognition of a
* liability
for annual leave

*

*
*

*

and paid sick leave is not
required.
A different approach to
calculating the present
value of liabilities and
written down value
using government bonds
rather than a credit risk
adjusted market rate (this
is likely to result in higher
present values).
Fewer disclosure
requirements for items in

▌▌▌WHERE AN ENTITY IS FACING A ITEM OF A KIND
FOR WHICH IT HAS NO EXISTING ACCOUNTING POLICY,
IT SHOULD REFER TO FRS 102 TO IDENTIFY PRACTICE
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the accounts, especially
to do with financial
instruments, group
accounts, and related
party transactions.

What are the main
changes to the trustees’
annual report?
The form and content of the
trustees’ annual report is
common to both SORPs. The
two changes that affect all
charities are:
A charity must disclose
its reserves policy or it
must state it does not
have a reserves policy
and give reasons.
All trustees who served
in the accounting period
and/or are in position
at the time the report is
signed must be named.
Changes that affect only
larger charities are:
A description of the
principal risks and
uncertainties facing
the charity and its
subsidiary undertakings,
as identified by the
charity trustees, together
with a summary of their
plans and strategies for
managing those risks.
The arrangements
for setting the pay
and remuneration
of the charity’s key
management personnel
and any benchmarks,
parameters or criteria
used in setting their pay.
An explanation of social
investment policies and
how any programme
related investments
contributed to the
achievement of its aims
and objectives.

*
*

*

*

*

What will need restating
when preparing the
accounts?
In preparing the accounts
under a new SORP, the
comparatives for the
previous period need to
be restated on a like-forlike basis which requires a

revised comparator opening
balance sheet and closing
balance sheet for the
previous period together
with a SoFA for the previous
period. Also if FRS 102 is
followed, a comparative for
the Statement of Cash Flows
is needed.
The items most likely to
require adjustment are:
Material items of income
known to the charity at
the balance sheet date
(or items that would
otherwise be an adjusting
item) to which the charity
was entitled and that
could be estimated
reliably that were not
accrued at the relevant
balance sheet date solely
because receipt was not
virtually certain.
If staff costs are a
material item and the
accounts are to be
prepared under FRS 102,
the initial accrual of paid
annual leave and paid
sick leave is likely to be
material.
If the charity is a

*

*

*

*

*

member of a multiemployer defined
benefit pension scheme
and in the absence of
notification of its share
of the actuarial scheme
deficit it has agreed
to make additional
contributions based on
past service costs but
has not recognised this
liability and the accounts
are to be prepared under
FRS 102.
The charity receives a
material value of donated
goods for distribution
or resale and it is both
practical to, and the
benefits outweigh the
costs of, recognising
those goods on receipt.
The charity elects to
change its accounting
policy for example to
recognise concessionary
loans at fair value rather
than on the basis of the

*

*

amount paid/received
adjusted for accrued
interest and repayments
of principal.
If the accounts are to
be prepared under FRS
102 and a material item
falls under the definition
of an ‘other financial
instrument’ and has
not been previously
recognised at fair value.
In respect of charitable
companies and/or noncurrent debtors, material
items of revenue under
contract or from the sale
of goods where extended
credit terms are offered
and the embedded
financing arrangement
has not been previously
recognised. ■

Nigel Davies is technical
secretary to the charities
SORP committee at the
Charities Commission
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

The new SORPs, along with helpsheets, will be
published in July at www.charitysorp.org
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The view from

‘

BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS, ADAPTING AND
DELIVERING EXCEPTIONAL SERVICE HAVE PROVIDED
FIRM FOUNDATIONS FOR MY CAREER’ RAVINE
MANN ACCA, SENIOR CONSULTANT, ADVISORY,
PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT - FINANCE, EY
SNAPSHOT:
CORPORATE
FINANCE

My role in EY is primarily clientfocused. Strong communication skills
and ensuring that clients obtain the
highest quality of work are a necessity
to building good working relationships
both internally and externally, along
with helping my clients solve key,
critical business issues.
We face an increasing demand
whereby clients require solutions
to complex business problems. EY
needs to work within cross-service
lines, which require a variety of
different disciplines and technical
expertise. This has given me a greater
perspective of the business issues that
management faces on a daily basis.
I began my career within the luxury
retail industry. It’s where I gained a
good grounding in many of the skills
I’ve been able to further develop within
EY. However, I soon realised that a
back-office, largely unchanging and
slow-paced role was not for me. When I
was offered a place within the advisory,
performance improvement team at EY,
I couldn’t resist.
The element I most enjoy is the
variety and pace of work. No two
days are the same at EY and both
as individuals and a team we are
constantly learning and developing.
It is most definitely a very dynamic
environment to be part of.
Working towards gaining the ACCA
Qualification is one of the most
demanding challenges I have faced.
Above all, though, it has helped me to
demonstrate the commitment I have to
my career development.
I studied accounting and finance at
Kingston University. Upon graduating,

I spoke to a family friend who
was a qualified accountant and it
sounded like a varied and interesting
career path, which persuaded me
to pursue the ACCA route. I chose
ACCA as it was a globally recognised
qualification and I liked the structure
of the qualification. It provides
clients and colleagues with a level of
comfort that I will be competent and
trustworthy enough to be a part of
their business.
Qualifying with ACCA would have to
be one of the proudest achievements
in my career, as well as having the
opportunity to be part of a global
leader like EY. EY is also active within
local communities, supports arts
initiatives with the V&A, and is actively
involved in the Prince’s Trust. I have the
opportunity to volunteer throughout
the year in various community
improvement initiatives such as
‘Inspiring Young Generations’.
Outside of work I love keeping fit.
Whether it’s circuit training, going for a
run or to pilates – they all help relieve
stress at the end of a challenging but
fun day. ■

For the past few years the
corporate finance industry
has been affected by
uncertain economic factors,
but as things plateau and
start to look more hopeful,
the knock-on effect means
an injection of enthusiasm
reflected in real movement in
the M&A markets.
Matt Meadows, corporate
finance partner at Kingston
Smith, says: ‘M&A activity
is improving quarter by
quarter, so to continue this
growth I would like to see the
availability of finance from
traditional sources mirror this
upturn. The debt to finance
transactions is there, but it is
very conservative.
‘Banks should now put
their faith in the recovery
and readdress their attitude
towards risk. However, this
should not mean a return to
the reckless lending prevalent
before the credit crunch.
‘Along with the exciting
variety of work, the fact that
clients really value the work
that we do makes the job
very satisfying. We make a
difference that is measurable.’

23%

According to Dealogic, global
M&A grew in Q1 2014 by
23% compared with Q1 2013,
up to US$804.5bn from
US$655.8bn. But while the size
of individual M&As expands,
the total number is falling.
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Keeping your head above water?
Treating small audits as a service line doomed to extinction is a bit of a self-fulfilling
prophecy, says John Selwood, but there are ways to make it successful

I used to live next door to a weekend
home owned by a man who had made
his money from ‘plastic-coated wire
things’. He and his wife were a nice
couple, but both hated those plasticcoated wire things, not because the
business was difficult or unprofitable
– far from it – but because it was
pedestrian. From time to time, I
suggested that plastic-coated wire
things are good and useful things, and
making money from them a worthy
activity, but they were never persuaded.
I used to know quite a lot of
auditors just like that. When, in 1994,
the UK had a blanket audit requirement
for all companies regardless of size,
audit was regarded as fit for people
who, shall we say, lacked imagination
and ambition.
In the mid-1990s audit for the larger
UK firms was a means to an end, a way
of cross-selling other services. Anyone
who questioned this approach was
dismissed as out of touch and lacking
in commercial awareness.
A lot has changed since then.
Regulators are now not only wellestablished, they have also been
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emboldened by the financial crisis.
Ethical requirements are tougher than
ever and auditing standards are longer.
Compliance is hard work and a job as
a compliance officer requires muscle –
introverted types need no longer apply
even if they do know their stuff.
Audit – for better or worse – is
no longer dull. Never again will it be
the relatively easy money it might
once have been, and there are risks
associated with it that simply didn’t
exist 20 years ago. Clients argue about
fees, and maintaining the infrastructure
to support a compliant system is no
longer cheap.
My advice to firms that have hung
on to audit registration for the sake of
one or two audits is either to get their
smaller audits in order by gearing the
practice up to perform them properly,
or to get out altogether – there are
other ways to make a living.
So how do the firms out there that
are quietly making a comfortable
profit out of smaller audits – and
there are plenty of them, including
voluntary audits – manage to do it? And
what should a smaller firm that has

neglected its audit practice for a while
do to get it back into shape?
The suggestions offered in the rest
of this piece are based on observation
of successful, efficient smaller firms
with healthy and growing audit
practices. The vast majority have
been though significant changes in
recent years. Many have been through
mergers or absorbed other local
practices and taken on work for those
who have given up audit registration.
An increasing number specialise in
industry sectors, particularly those
with tougher rules such as academies,
charities and financial services. Their
recipe for audit success seems to
involve some combination of the
following.

Software and systems
These need to be of a good standard
and in place. Systems and software
are often the elephant in the room
that no one really wants to talk about
because the logistics of change are too
much to contemplate. Some of what
is on the market could certainly be
improved on, and too many systems
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The commerciality reality
Alastair Beddow and Ben Kent of Meridian West explore the changes in behaviour
required for accountants in practice to offer businesses the advice they crave
Financial professionals are seen by
their clients to be less commercial
than other advisers. While 34% of
senior executives told a survey by
Meridian West and the Financial
Times that legal professionals
are excellent at providing advice
that incorporates commercial
insight, just 15% of them gave the
same rating to accountancy and
finance professionals.
Why should this be? With
their grip on the numbers,
financial professionals are close
to the heart of any business. Yet
external advisers are increasingly
specialised – offering clients a view
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on the intricacies of transfer pricing
in Eastern Europe, say – often at the
expense of being able to share a
broader, more commercial perspective.
Compared with lawyers, accountants
are disadvantaged by regulation such
as Sarbanes-Oxley, which creates both
real and perceived barriers to offering
business advice.
With ever more frequency,
information about other organisational
priorities – risk, talent, technology,
innovation and customer – is being
given the same attention as financial
data when boards take business
decisions. External advisers need to
respond to this appetite for forward-

looking metrics and non-financial
key performance indicators (KPIs).
One way to stay ahead of peers and
of changing client expectations is to
embrace commerciality.

What is commerciality?
Commerciality is a much used but
ill-defined term. Yet its nub is simple:
commerciality is about focusing on
business outcomes when providing
financial information and advice. To do
this successfully means understanding
the context in which decisions based
on that advice will be taken. This is
an area where many professionals
struggle. Pride in being technically
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correct can lead to inflexibility. Lack of
clarity about desired business outcome
can produce results that don’t quite hit
the mark.
Take tax planning, an area rife
with complexity where technical
and specialist knowledge is vital
and advantageous. To benefit from
tax efficiencies it might make good
financial sense to advise a company
to operate a foreign subsidiary.
However, a solution that is technically
sound on paper may throw up many
operational challenges such as an
increased cost of workforce mobility,
or tarnish the corporate reputation with
the tax avoider tag.
A truly commercial professional
balances these competing demands
to find a solution that helps an
organisation achieve the best possible
business outcome. This may require
problems to be framed in new ways.
In the above example, rather than dive
straight into a technical tax-planning
solution, it may be possible to achieve
the desired outcome of freeing up cash
for investment through a course of
action that has fewer reputational or
operational drawbacks.

Commerciality in practice
Commerciality is a mindset. This does
not mean it cannot be taught or honed
further by experienced professionals.
To translate commerciality into
practice it is important to focus on
behaviour. Identifying behaviours
that frustrate clients and consciously
eliminating and replacing them with
more commercial ones, through
practice and repetition, is the best way
to realise lasting improvements.
Based on extensive research among
thousands of finance professionals
and their clients, we have developed
a framework to help professionals
identify, communicate and improve
commerciality. The ‘seven habits of
commerciality’ framework (see box)
can be applied by finance professionals
to any client engagement, regardless
of their area of expertise.

Virtuous habits in practice

First: understanding the people.
Business is mainly about managing
people, relationships and politics.
Being aware of individuals, their

THE SEVEN HABITS
1 Focus on the desired outcomes
2 Understand the business
context
3 Understand the economics
4 Understand the people
5 Agree the scope
6 Build practical solutions
7 Communicate with impact

competing interests and motivations is
therefore key not only for determining
the solution to a given problem, but
also communicating its rationale.
For example, one firm creates
relationship maps for all its client
engagements, mapping out all
individuals within their own team and
the client team, and encompassing
stakeholders such as the CEO and
non-executives – not just the direct
members of the finance team they
liaise with on a daily basis.
It is important to pay close
attention to the competing interests
and preferences of the wider group of
individuals who may have a veto over
any decisions made.
Next: agreeing the scope. When
deadlines and resources are tight, it
is tempting to launch straight into a
piece of work to complete it as quickly
as possible. This leaves little time to
think through the strategy. The most
commercial advisers set goals and
metrics about what a successful client
engagement looks like, communicating
information about desired outcomes,
tasks, resource and timelines.
Scoping is critical for external
advisers grappling with a move away
from traditional ‘time and materials’
pricing to fixed or success-related
fees. Agreeing a clear scope of works
up front helps accurately price an
engagement to avoid writing off large
amounts of work when the needs of
the client change.
Lastly: communicating with impact.
A common complaint from time-poor
executives is that financial reporting
is long, technocratic and has to be
translated for non-financial audiences.
They want information which is easy
to understand, quick to assimilate and
highlights the key points in complex or
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contentious issues. Simple changes
such as prioritising risks, explaining
implications clearly for non-financial
audiences and communicating
visually make a big difference.

The pay-off
Commerciality can be a significant
differentiator when clients choose
which external firms they work with.
Being able to articulate knowledge
of sector trends, provide foresight
on relevant issues, and be proactive
on scoping and project management
can boost pitch win rates and the
profitability of engagements.
One firm that has tackled this
challenge head-on has adopted an
approach based on commerciality
principles for delivering pension
advice. In doing so, it has virtually
eliminated an average 20% write-off
in fees for subsequent engagements.

What next?
The seven habits of commerciality
framework focuses on virtuous
habits that have both a shortterm pay-off (greater efficiency or
profitability) and long-term benefits
(improved competitive positioning).
Developing a strategy sheet for an
engagement, creating a stakeholder
map, or focusing on outcomes need
not be a tortuous experience.
Any adviser can benefit from
spending just a few minutes
being more thoughtful about
commerciality and what this means
for their interactions with clients.
Small changes matter. At the
beginning of an engagement have
the courage to ask commercialityfocused questions: Who are the
key stakeholders? What form of
communication is preferred? What
kind of solution is being sought?
What is the desired outcome? The
answers might just surprise you. ■
Alastair Beddow is associate director
and Ben Kent is managing director
at consultancy Meridian West
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

The seven habits of
commerciality framework is at
www.commerciality-hub.com
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The view from

‘

I WOULD LOVE THE NHS TO HAVE A PERIOD OF
STABILITY FREE FROM POLITICAL INTERFERENCE
AND TOP-DOWN REORGANISATIONS’
TIM GOODSON FCCA, CHIEF OFFICER, DORSET CCG
Each day brings a different
set of challenges. But my
days at Dorset Clinical
Commissioning Group
(CCG) are generally a
mix of meetings with
stakeholders trying to
improve the system and
provision of care. At
present, the financial
pressures on all
organisations make this
increasingly difficult, but it could lead
to radical solutions that impact across
the system.
My role is to ensure the CCG delivers
its mission of ‘supporting people in
Dorset to lead healthier lives’. This
predominantly involves trying to keep
all of the local public sector moving
in the same direction, while leading
Dorset CCG to play our role in this
process. I spend a lot of my time
engaging with GPs to gather their
views and opinions on proposals.
I would love the NHS to have a good
period of stability free from political
interference and enforced top-down
reorganisations. Each of those
reorganisations requires huge effort,
commitment and use of resources.
I suppose I can always dream.
My main advice to anyone starting out
is to tackle everything with a positive,
‘can-do’ approach. Technical skills can
be taught; it is far harder to change
someone’s attitude. I would also say put
yourself forward for those extra projects;
it will set you apart from the crowd
and widen your networking. The HFMA
– Healthcare Financial Management
Association – is excellent for this.
My first big career change was to
move out of auditing and into more

mainstream finance. This
was driven by a desire to
get more hands-on with
finance and organisational
delivery. My second change,
following several years as
a director of finance, was
the decision to become
an executive chief officer.
I wanted to broaden my
role within the new CCG
and have a break from the
finance world to try something new.
My biggest achievement in a
strictly personal sense has been to
continuously push myself to keep
stepping up to the next challenge that
has come along. This has enabled me
to reach director of finance and then
chief officer positions at a relatively
young age, although my looks may tell a
different story!
The ACCA Qualification gave
me a really solid foundation in
understanding all the different aspects
of how any business functions.
Everyone expects accountants to be
comfortable with the numbers, but it
is the added value that you bring to
the other areas of the business where
people look up and really take notice.
The ACCA Qualification develops that
broader perspective.
Away from work, I love to go hill
walking. I recently completed the Three
Peaks Challenge with a group of friends.
This involved getting up and down
Ben Nevis, Scafell Pike and Snowdon
within 24 hours in the torrential rain!
Together we raised more than £10,000
for the British Heart Foundation. I
also enjoy cycling and can often be
seen at weekends whizzing around
Dorset on my road bike, with plenty of
refreshment stops on the way! ■

SNAPSHOT: RIGHT
TO BUY COUNCIL
HOUSING
Since the policy of right
to buy was introduced
by Margaret Thatcher’s
government in 1980, 1.8
million council homes have
been sold in England.
Sales reached their peak in
1982–3, when 167,123 council
homes were sold to their
tenants, dropping dramatically
to a low of 2,739 in 2009–10.
The Labour government cut
discounts available to homes
in London and the South East,
while property price inflation
meant few tenants could afford
to buy, even with discounts.
The current government
reinvigorated right to buy in
2012 when David Cameron
raised the maximum discount
to £75,000 outside London
and £100,000 in London.
This summer, discounts were
further revised upward from
60% of market value to 70%,
with the capped limit rising
annually in line with inflation.
In London, more than a
third of former right-to-buy
homes are now owned by
private landlords and let at
rents typically three times the
levels charged by councils.

2017

Wales, Northern Ireland
and Scotland have their
own right-to-buy provisions,
but Scotland is abolishing the
right to buy from 2017.
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Rescue agenda
The European Bank for Reconstruction and Development is pledging greater support to
Ukraine while retaining lending to other troubled countries, its annual meeting heard
The European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development (EBRD) is giving
more assistance to Ukraine because
of the country’s ongoing political
and military crisis, the development
institution’s annual meeting has been
told. The country is a core part of the
EBRD’s region of operations, which
covers central and eastern Europe
and central Asia – as is Russia, whose
recent annexation of Crimea sparked a
diplomatic firestorm.
EBRD president Suma Chakrabarti
told colleagues at the May meeting in
Warsaw, Poland, that the lending policy
message from bank discussions was
clear: ‘We will scale up our support to
Ukraine to support the authorities and
broader society as it strives to accelerate
reforms and address the economic and
political challenges,’ he said.

At the annual meeting Chakrabarti
stressed: ‘We propose an evolutionary
approach where we draw on the bank’s
existing and proven capacities. But we
want to bring these capacities together
in a dynamic, results-oriented manner.’
The support that the EBRD gives
Russia – widely accused of fomenting
the political crisis that has engulfed
Ukraine in the first place – is less solid,
although there is no indication that the
bank is preparing to abandon Moscow.
EBRD loans to Russia fell from
€2.6bn in 2012 to €1.8bn in 2013.
According to Chakrabarti, financing
could drop again this year, as the bank
may up its lending to countries at risk
of economic damage from the RussiaUkraine crisis.
‘On Russia, whatever the future may
hold, we need to remember the success

▌▌▌’WE NEED TO REMEMBER THE SUCCESS SO
FAR. OUR PROJECTS AND POLICY WORK HAVE
ASSISTED MODERNISATION AND REFORM’
According to the London-based
bank’s economists, assuming there is
no further major security threat from
Russia, Ukraine should undergo a
major, though gradual, adjustment to
its financial, regulatory, business and
industrial systems, with significant
short-term output costs. External
and fiscal imbalances would be
gradually reduced with the support
of an International Monetary Fund
programme, plus help from multilateral
and bilateral donors.
‘Under this baseline scenario,
necessary structural reforms would
be implemented on schedule and
a systemic banking crisis would
be averted, though fiscal costs of
bank recapitalisation may turn out
to be significant. However, ongoing
disruptions related to developments in
eastern Ukraine will weigh on growth
even without any further escalation,’ an
EBRD statement explained.
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so far,’ Chakrabarti said. ‘I believe our
projects and policy work have assisted
the process of modernisation and
reform in Russia and that the bank
continues to be a useful channel of
dialogue in this region.’

Slashed forecasts
The EBRD has slashed its economic
forecast for both countries. In January,
it had predicted 1.5% GDP growth for
Kiev this year, but after the crisis cut
its prediction by 8.5%. For Moscow,
the bank’s economists had predicted
the country’s GDP would grow by 2.5%
this year, but now predict stagnation
(0% growth).
Although the Ukraine crisis might
curb EBRD investment in Russia, it
has not, so far, changed anything in
the bank’s approach to other countries
that are politically and economically
affiliated with Russia. Kazakhstan, a
member of the Russian-led Eurasian

Economic Union, remains an EBRD
priority. Since its creation in 1991,
the bank has been helping the central
Asian republic diversify its economy.
The EBRD’s current Kazakh
financing is mostly focused on the
country’s robust energy and key
transport sectors. ‘We are working
on projects that encourage foreign
investors to come to [the Kazakh
capital] Astana,’ said Kazakh vice
minister of finance Ruslan Dalenov.
Another flagship project is green
transport. Recently, the EBRD has lent
US$18.8m to the southern Kazakh city
of Kyzylorda to buy 100 buses that run
on natural gas. The EBRD is also helping
the Kazakh state-owned railway operator
KTZ to update its lighting system and
find alternative heating solutions. The
improvement will enable KTZ to cut its
greenhouse gas emissions by 80,000
metric tonnes a year.
Dmitriy Tkachenko, head of the
strategic planning department at
Kazakhstan’s National Chamber of
Entrepreneurs, said: ‘We want to
become a central Asian hub and to do
so we’re focusing on the aviation sector.’
Further west, Romania is one
country in the EBRD zone that may
need extra help to cope with the
economic fall-out of the crisis in
Ukraine, with which it shares a land
border. The bank may also be looking
harder at relevant projects in Romania
given the country’s decision to try and
join the euro single currency zone on 1
January 2019. The country has already
exited the European Union’s excessive
deficit procedure after bringing the
deficit below the 3% threshold that
triggers additional EU controls on
national economic policies.

Privatisation and SMEs
The annual meeting heard that the
EBRD’s Romanian strategy will be to
continue focusing on privatisation;
45% of the Romanian economy
remains in the public sector and
the bank hopes to assist in planned
initial public offerings of state-owned
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AIDING TRANSFORMATION
The EBRD was founded in 1991 to support the process of
transformation from communist to free-market economies in the former
Soviet bloc and some neighbouring countries. It provides financing for
banks, businesses and industries.
The bank says it will operate only in countries ‘committed to
democratic principles’, although it has worked in Turkmenistan and
Uzbekistan. In 2013, the EBRD invested nearly €8.5bn in 392 projects.

companies by acquiring 5% to 10%
stakes. It is also supporting growth of
small and medium-sized enterprises
and encouraging other foreign direct
investment (FDI).
One foreign direct investor in
Romania is Spain-based hydraulics
equipment maker Grupo Industrial
Roquet, which will open a factory in
Ploiești, in Wallachia, thanks to an
EBRD loan. ‘We’re producing more
complicated hydraulics equipment,
basically everything the Chinese can’t
produce,’ Roquet CEO Cipriano Gomez
jokingly told the meeting. He added
that Romania had been chosen over
other locations, including Turkey,
because of its competitive advantages.
Roquet’s Romanian factory will
produce larger diameter cylinders used
mainly in agricultural and construction
machinery. ‘For our company, founded
in the 1950s, this is a giant step to
gradually becoming a global player,’

Gomez said. ‘When we studied
various sites for investment we
realised that Romania offered many
advantages, among them a very
positive business atmosphere.’
The Ukraine fall-out was not the
only focus of the meeting. The EBRD’s
range stretches as far south as Turkey,
which is currently coping with an
inflation rate now exceeding 8% and a
current account deficit. Its government
is trying to redress both trends while
increasing domestic savings.
For years Turkey has been one
of the EBRD’s biggest challenges.
Michael Davey, head of the EBRD’s
Turkey office, said: ‘We came here
well prepared, we did our homework,
but with each year we learned that
the longer we were there, the less
we actually knew. We had to relearn
everything.’
The country is very focused on R&D
and innovation, stressed Ernur Mutlu,

▲ ROAD TO CHANGE

The EBRD has lent US$18.8m to the
Kazakh city of Kyzylorda to buy 100
buses that run on natural gas

vice president of product development
at Ford Otosan, a joint venture between
Ford and Turkey’s Koç Holding which
manufactures trucks and vans. ‘Turkey
has a well-educated and young
population,’ he said.
A key EBRD focus in Turkey is
agriculture. ‘We are the 16th biggest
economy and seventh biggest
agricultural economy in the world, yet
FDI is very low,’ said Ismail Keskinoglu,
CEO of Keskinoglu, Turkey’s largest
egg producer. ■
Jacek Ciesnowski, journalist based in
Warsaw
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

Focus on Ukraine –
‘School of survival’:
www.accaglobal.com/ab86
EBRD: www.ebrd.com
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Reaching out
Building closer links with standard-setters around the world, not just the IASB, is on the
agenda for Teresa Polley, president and CEO of the US Financial Accounting Foundation
Teresa Polley heads up an
organisation that describes
itself as the most important
financial oversight body
that most Americans don’t
know about. The Financial
Accounting Foundation (FAF)
oversees the organisations
that set reporting rules
for both the private
sector and America’s
multitude of state and
local governments.
It is a mission she feels
passionately about. ‘We
believe that good financial
reporting creates a virtuous
cycle,’ she says. ‘It enables
investors to make the best
decisions and allocate
capital in ways that fuel
growth. The result is a
strong and stable economy.’
Yet Polley never planned
on a career in public service.
She started off in the now
defunct accountancy firm
Arthur Andersen, which was
broken up in 2002 following
its handling of the auditing
of Enron. ‘It was a great
place to start as an entrylevel accountant,’ she says.
‘It still tugs at my heart to
think it no longer exists.’
Polley joined the Financial
Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) – the rule setter for
company reporting – in 1987
only after a private-sector
employer delayed too long
in making her a job offer. ‘I
assumed this would last only
a few years before I returned
to the private sector. That
was 26 years ago.’
The variety of careers at
the FAF and the FASB partly
explains her decision to stay
so long. ‘There was always
something stimulating
to do,’ she says. During
the 1990s, Polley was
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the controller of the FAF,
managing the organisation’s
own financial statements
and budget. ‘It was rather
like being a doctor to
doctors,’ she says.
Following this, she was
the executive director of
the Advisory Groups for the
FASB with responsibility for
communicating between the
board and its constituent
organisations. In 2008,
Polley was appointed as
interim president of the

Standards (IFRS) are used
by more than 100 countries.
‘This was a real milestone,’
she says. ‘Revenue is a
very important part of the
financial statement of any
entity.’ The new rules, to
be introduced in 2017,
will make it far easier to
compare the accounts of
American and European
companies – and help
promote international
mergers and acquisitions,
according to some experts.

US investors are more likely
to sue,’ she says. ‘That
creates a demand from
companies for a more rulebased system that provides
very detailed guidance.
Companies want to be sure
they are within the bounds
of the standard.’
Meanwhile the auditors
are subject to secondguessing by the Public
Company Accounting
Oversight Board. With less
concern about legal action,

▌▌▌‘WHEN WE STARTED ON UNIFIED STANDARDS, I
THINK EVERYONE UNDERESTIMATED THE CHALLENGES
OF FITTING VERY DIFFERENT CULTURES AND MARKETS’
FAF, while the organisation
searched for a permanent
boss. After what she
describes as a ‘nine-month
job interview’ she was asked
to take over permanently.

Global direction
The responsibility is not
for the faint-hearted, she
admits. ‘What concerns
me most is where we are
heading globally. We are
working hard to ensure that
we have globally comparable
information, but that we
do this in a way that does
not dilute the high-quality
structure we have in the US.’
On the day before
Polley’s interview, the FASB
announced a rare triumph
of global co-ordination –
publishing new rules for
revenue recognition along
with the London-based
International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB),
whose International
Financial Reporting

Still, the fact that the
accord took more than a
decade to hammer out
illustrates the difficulties
of convergence. ‘When
we started on the path
towards unified standards,
I think that everyone
underestimated the
challenges. The difficulty has
been fitting the same set of
standards to very different
cultures and markets.’ One
of the basic divides, she
says, is that the US is more
focused on equity markets,
while European regulators
are often more attuned to
the interests of creditors,
primarily bank lenders.
‘That is a very different
relationship and the users
of financial information have
different needs.’
One basic cultural
difference, she says, is the
litigious nature of American
investors. ‘If there is any
sense that a company has
violated an accounting rule,

European companies are
more comfortable with a
principles-based system that
gives more leeway.
There have also been
specific sticking points,
including the debate over
the impairment of bad
loans. ‘The standard under
discussion potentially would
result in an increase in bank
reserves in Europe but a
decrease in the US,’ she
explains. ‘In the wake of
the 2008 financial crisis,
everyone agreed that this
did not make sense.’
European and US
standard-setters have
also so far failed to agree
on a common approach
to accounting for leases.
‘On this issue there is a
conceptual agreement
between the FASB and the
IASB,’ Polley says. ‘But the
practicalities have been
stubbornly hard to resolve.’
While most media
attention falls on the

»
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FASB, the role of the
Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB)
is no less crucial, Polley
argues. ‘This body not only
sets the reporting rules
for America’s 50 states,
but also for every town
and village for more than
85,000 municipal entities,’
she says. That’s not only
relevant for investors in
the $1.6 trillion municipal
bond market. ‘This is also
information for citizens and
taxpayers that enables them
to monitor how their money
is being spent and can help
determine who they vote for.’
This remit too is replete
with thorny issues. Among
the most pressing has
been how states and cities
account for the retirement
and health benefits of their
former workers. As recently
as 2012, the GASB brought
in rules to compel such
entities to include pension
obligations on their balance
sheets. This, Polley says,
will give a more accurate
impression of the fiscal
health of states and cities.
Next on the agenda
is accounting for postretirement healthcare
spending. ‘The situation
here can be even worse
than for pensions,’ Polley
laments. ‘The private sector
has been accounting for this
for years and it appears to
have caused companies to
manage these costs better.’
Voters need to know if state
and local governments are
assuming financial burdens
that will come back to
haunt taxpayers in years or
decades to come. In a recent
survey of 61 cities the Pew
Research Center found a
$217bn shortfall between
pension benefits and the
funding to pay for them.
With such a diverse
range of users of financial
information, the FAF is
constantly aware of the
need for openness.
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reporting, including
measures of ecological
sustainability. ‘We believe
all kinds of information are
important,’ Polley says. ‘That
said, it is still unclear where
integrated reporting will
lead. It is important for us to
stay on issue and retain our
focus on the financial aspect
of reporting.’

Multilateral future

THE FAF

*

BASICS
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Formed in 1972, the Financial
Accounting Foundation has a mission
to act as an apolitical, independent
organisation focused on establishing
and improving financial accounting
standards and thus enhancing the
information found in financial reports.
Today, the FAF oversees the work of
the bodies tasked with setting privatesector and public-sector accounting
standards: the Financial Accounting
Standards Board and the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

‘The FASB and the GASB
always meet in public to
ensure we get as much
feedback as possible,’
says Polley. Reaching out
is not always easy. ‘In the
investment community
we have to communicate
with the buy-side and
sell-side, along with stock
and debt analysts,’ she
says. ‘These groups are far
less homogenous than the
preparers and each uses
information differently.’
Polley says that it is

important that investors
are represented within the
standard-setting bodies.
Among the FASB’s advisory
groups is one solely
composed of investors,
she points out. In addition,
several of the FASB board
members are drawn from
the investor community.
The FAF also keeps a
close eye on integrated

Even after five years in the
job, Polley is still looking
years ahead. ‘One of our
tasks will be to ensure we
forge closer links with other
standard-setters around the
world, not just the IASB,’
she says. ‘The world is tired
of this being just a bilateral
discussion.’ The FAF has
pushed for discussions
with standard-setting bodies
in such nations as Japan
and Germany. ‘We need a
broader dialogue,’ she adds.
Polley also believes that
technology will continue to
change the profession. ‘We
see an acceleration in the
speed at which financial
information is collected and
delivered,’ she says. ‘That
will affect any organisation
that reports financial data.’
Over the coming years,
Polley believes the world
will make more progress
towards common accounting
standards. ‘It is our goal to
move towards convergence
without sacrificing quality,’
she says. ‘This is certainly
not an easy task, but I
believe that in five years
we will be closer to that
goal and it will be easier to
compare accounts around
the world.’ The agreement
on revenue recognition is the
most powerful sign to date
that this vision is realistic. ■
Christopher Alkan, journalist
based in New York
FOR MORE INFORMATION:

www.accountingfoundation.org
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Not just the CIO’s issue:

Why the CFO and CEO need to care about security
Lesley Meall in her article in the
February edition of AB talked
about the risks to your business of
the rise and rise of mobile devices
in the corporate IT space, the ever
shrinking size of those devices and
the increasing threat to business from
hackers, insiders, organised crime and
state funded malicious actors.
Lesley’s article highlighted the very
real need for organisations to think
more broadly about how they protect
themselves against cyber attack. The
risks to the organisation and its business
grow almost daily. One day it is the risk
from smart phones and the increasing
prevalence of company “bring your own
device” (BYOD) policy. The next day
it is the potential vulnerability of “the
cloud” where so many individuals keep
their personal data which in many cases
can provide a rich vein of company
intelligence, so useful to the potential
attackers. Yet these are only some of the
employee related threats. Many more
exist, as do risks associated with the
supply chain, the organisation’s physical
environment, its market place and its
operational infrastructure.
The need for an organisation to take
a strategic and holistic approach to
protecting themselves against risk of
attack, cyber or physical, has never been
more apparent.

The CIO’s problem?

It is true that in today’s world the CIO
has a big headache. If information is
important to your business then the
chances are that its valuable to your
competitors! The recent 2013 Verizon
Data Breach report highlighted that
75% of breaches are financially driven.
In today’s ever connected world
though securing the organisation cannot
be the CIO’s challenge alone. Data,
methods and process and intellectual
property are all now so important to the
organisation’s future that the approach to
protecting them can’t just remain in the
CIO’s world.

AccOunTIng AnD BusInEss

The traditional approach to security
has been to make sure that the CIO
is focussed on information security
whilst making sure the COO has put
in place some high fences and a man
guarding system to protect the company’s physical assets. Meanwhile the
HR Director may be thinking about
how he “vets” new and existing employees to make sure that insider risks
are considered. However who is thinking about employee behaviour when
interacting with the company’s critical
information systems, and who thinks
about links between physical access to
company property and links to critical
business information?
Equally, who is considering the
cyber attack against the industrial and
process control networks in plants that
automate so much of what organisations
do to earn their revenue today and who
is thinking about protecting the critical
information held by the business’ supply
chain? Whilst the organisation is taking a
siloed approach to the managing security
there is a very real risk that threat and
vulnerability falls between the gaps in
the organisational security silos which
the malevolent actor can easily exploit.

An holistic approach

Given the increasingly complex threat
to the organisation and the criticality
of business information to deliver the
organisation’s mission shouldn’t security be keeping the CEO and the CFO
awake at night? Shouldn’t organisations take an holistic top down approach
to security? Arguably security, or the
lack of it, is the one thing that can single
handedly bring a business down. Many
businesses though still see security as a
necessary evil and the cost of it as a tax
on the business. How can this be?
The modern market place is the
internet and the organisation that can put
most information out in a secure way has
a potential strategic advantage. Elevating
security spend from a tax on the business
to be a business enabler can enhance the

uniqueness of the organisation and
its business proposition.

Putting security on the agenda

All this suggests that the CEO and the
CFO should be thinking very seriously
about security and how it enhances the
business. If security is business enabler
then we should be monitoring its value
to the business not just its cost. One way
to do this is to establish top level goals
associated with security, however another
even more effective way to do it is to
make sure that security is actually linked
to the core business objectives. In this
way the business can ensure that it is
protecting the things that are critical to it
and can make what is important available
to the outsider but in a very secure way.

What does all this mean?

If security is about protection of
organisational value then the assets of the
organisation from which it derives that
value are the place to look when deciding
what to protect and how. For the CFO
therefore the challenge becomes how
to get an understanding of what are the
critical assets and how do they contribute
to organisational value. Having done that
he can assess what is an appropriate level
of security to protect those assets and
what is the appropriate cost.
The CEO naturally wants to know
what assets in the business is delivering
value and set the business objectives
to take account of that but he needs to
know that the security of those assets
has an appropriate, value driven, level
of security.

Andrew Cooke, Director, Security
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FCCA wins FD of the Future Award
Award recognising the brightest and best-performing finance executive in the country
goes to Tracy Waind FCCA, financial controller for Hemingways Marketing Services
Tracy Waind FCCA,
financial controller
for Hemingways
Marketing
Services, has
won the FD of
the Future Award
at the FDs’
Excellence
Awards.
Waind
identified
the need to
upgrade and
automate
Hemingways’
financial
system and
processes. In
particular, she

overhauled a complicated
VAT system associated with
being an intermediary
buying and selling gift
vouchers, reducing the
process from over a
week to a few hours.
She was
recognised
for her
potential and
contribution
to the
success of
Hemingways
at the
Excellence
Awards event,
held in London
in May. ■

UPCOMING EVENT
SECOND ACCA UK LOCAL GOVERNMENT SUMMIT
17 October, London
Following the success of our first local government
summit, the theme of this year’s conference will be
‘public service reform’. Included in the event will be
presentations, workshops and a networking drinks
reception, offering a great opportunity to meet fellow
finance professionals working in local government.
Normal cost £199, early-bird booking rate of £169
if you book before 1 October. For further information
or to book, visit http://tinyurl.com/qgr6jyt

MAKE SURE YOUR
CPD IS RELEVANT!
Your CPD should reflect your personal learning needs,
so when planning your CPD the most important thing to
focus on is its relevance to your role and career ambitions.
Your CPD is RELEVANT when:
n it reflects your individual learning needs
n it demonstrates new learning
n you can apply it in your workplace.
Save time and money and get the most out of your
learning by making sure it’s relevant to YOU.

Still unsure?
Watch the short video on CPD relevance by going to:

www.accaglobal.com/cpdrelevance
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FOR MORE INFORMATION:

For more on the FDs’ Excellence Awards visit
http://tinyurl.com/n2p83rq
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Awards night beckons
The British Accountancy Awards, supported by ACCA, reward the
brightest and the best, says Accountancy Age’s Kevin Reed
It amazes me how quickly
the British Accountancy
Awards come around. What
was a fantastic night at
the atmospheric Tower of
London for the 2013 event
is now seven months ago.
We have not rested
on our laurels. While the
popular Independent Firm
of the Year Awards – for
Scotland & North England,
Wales & South West,
Midlands, South East &
East, and Greater London –
remain, the category lineup
has been refreshed. We
have introduced a range
of service line-focused
awards, aimed at finding
the best teams among firms
ranked in the most recent
Accountancy Age Top 50
league table.
There are awards for
teams providing the core
audit and tax disciplines,
as well as other such
key areas as pensions,
corporate finance,
consulting, insolvency and
wealth management.
A subtle, but important,
addition is the Practitioner
of the Year Award. We have
successfully been running
the New Practitioner of the
Year Award, celebrating the
efforts of individuals with
less than three years postqualification. But what about
more experienced team
members and partners?
Hence the Practitioner of
the Year Award. If you can
think of individuals who
deserve special praise, then
the award is a great way to
give them recognition.
Other exciting categories
added in the past couple
of years include the
Online Accounting Award,

▲ SCENE OF TRIUMPH

Last year’s Awards night was
held at the Tower of London
recognising the practice that
has best leveraged online
services and tools to provide
the best client service.
And the Practice Start-up
Award looks to reward a new
practice that has made a big
impact in winning clients
and finding new ways of
providing services.
We are working hard
to create the best, most
valuable event possible.
Accountancy Age is pulling
together another high-class
group of judges; some
of the most influential
people in and around the
profession have already
agreed to take part. Public
Accounts Committee chair
Margaret Hodge will judge
this year, alongside Office of

Tax Simplification director
John Whiting. Also among
the panellists are Sarah
Hathaway, head of ACCA
UK, Chris Hill, CFO of FTSE
250 financial spread-betting
business IG, new Chartered
Institute of Taxation
president Anne Fairpo, and
Accounting and Business
columnist and former FT
finance editor Jane Fuller.
The Awards ceremony is
at The Brewery in central
London on 25 November. I’m
looking forward to another
fantastic evening. It would be
great if you can take part; I
hope to see you there. ■
Kevin Reed is editor of
Accountancy Age and
Financial Director
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ACCA is the only
professional accountancy
body offering round-theclock access to advisers.
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ABOUT
ACCA
ACCA is the global
body for professional
accountants.
We aim to offer
business-relevant,
first-choice
qualifications
to people of
application, ability
and ambition around
the world who seek a
rewarding career in
accountancy, finance
and management.
We support our
162,000 members
and 428,000
students throughout
their careers,
providing services
through a network
of 91 offices and
active centres.
www.accaglobal.com
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Disclosure is resource key
Clear link found between corporate strategy for managing the
business’s natural capital usage and its sustainability impact
Robust reporting is needed
from businesses on their
management and use of
key commodities, including
commitments to reduce the
impact on natural capital,
according to a report
by ACCA, Fauna & Flora
International and KPMG.
The report, Business and
investors: providers and users
of natural capital disclosure,
reviews disclosures from
intensive corporate users of
five key commodities with
a high impact on natural
capital: beef, cotton, palm
oil, soya and sugar.
The use of these
commodities is a critical
sustainability challenge and
the report discusses the
disclosure approaches taken.
Standard practices include
supplier certification,
supplier audits, membership
of industry-wide
sustainability initiatives, and
monitoring and traceability.
The report demonstrates
a clear link between an
organisation’s strategy for
managing its use of these
commodities and how far
it impacts on the natural
world. The unsustainable
use of natural capital
can create or exacerbate
corporate risk and is
increasingly important
to investors.

▼ CAPITAL DEPLETION

Cotton farming can lead to soil
erosion and water pollution

Outside a small leading
group, most companies
do not report their natural
capital impacts and
dependencies. This leaves
investors struggling to
assess natural capital risks
and opportunities.
Rachel Jackson, ACCA’s
head of sustainability,
said: ‘Businesses are
beginning to measure their
impacts on natural capital,
and accountants need to
understand the pivotal
role they should have in
accounting and reporting for
it accordingly.’
The report is at www.
accaglobal.com/ab89

Meanwhile, a new ACCA
policy paper called
Sustainability Matters has
made clear that the global
accountancy profession has
an important role to play
in making organisations
more responsible and
accountable in the pursuit
of sustainable development.
The paper covers ACCA
thinking on sustainability
and integrated reporting,
the assurance of nonfinancial reporting and
disclosure, climate change,
natural capital, and the
green economy.
See ‘Sustainability
masters’, page 24, for more.

EUROPE URGED TO TACKLE UNEMPLOYMENT
ACCA has called on the newly elected EU Parliament, which has a five-year term, to
resolve the outstanding issues in the bloc arising from the global financial crisis.
Ewan Willars, director of policy at ACCA, said: ‘We hope that this parliament is
determined to address the urgent crisis-related issues, especially those concerning
unemployment and job creation. It is also crucial to further complete the economic
and monetary union and to continue working towards the promotion of economic
growth and competitiveness.’
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